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Profile



A Strong motivated team of engineers, responsive marketing, solid support from our manufacturing shop 

resulting into CUSTOMER-DELIGHT catapulting TIRUPATI to a position of LEADERSHIP TODAY. Our 

installation stands testimony of our standing industry.

Tirupati will achieve complete satisfaction of customers by providing quality forgings/finished flanges 

and product related services, through continuous improvement in quality management system.

Tirupati was incorporated in the year 2012 with focus to manufacturing mass quantity of Carbon Steel 

Forged Flanges, Forged components and other automotive components. Tirupati is equipped with the 

modern CNC Machine Shop and technology upgraded infrastructure required for the meticulous 

machining center to be supported by quality assurance department. We had astounding growth focusing 

its activities for catering the need of international market.

Having installed capacity of 15000 TONS per annum. Our stringent quality control measure and full proof 

system got us accredited with ISO-9001:2015 certification, PED - AD 2000 and CRN (Canadian Registration 

Number) with Tirupati brand name. Our forged flanges and forged components largely shipped to U.S.A., 

European and African Countries.

We are equipped with the modern forge shop, Hydraulic Extrusion Shope  and machining facilities 

available under one roof adhering to stringent quality control measures. The entire system is backed by 

proper documentation, traceability until the end product, with quality checks as required under ISO & 

PED regulations.

TIRUPATI believes QUALITY is not just about a good product, but its about good attitude which 

encompasses all spheres of corporate.
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OUR
PRODUCTS

Includes End User

Auto Components, Bearings, 
Gears, Crank Sha�

Automobile, Railways, 
Agriculture, etc.

Carbon Steel, Stainless Steel, 
Din Flange, Conical Flange, 
Plate Flange.

Oil and Gas Pipelines, Water 
Pipelines, etc.

Closed Die Forged Products

Forged Flanges

Spindle, Hollow Jobs, Axle, 
Stub End, Long weld neck, etc. 

Defence & OEM., etc.

Hydraulic Extrusion 
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MANUFACTURING CAPACITY

Packing 
& Logis�cs

CNC 
Shop

Paint Shop

Ring 
Rolling 

Hydraulic
Extrusion

Forging 
Hammer



CERTIFICATES
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Mr. Atul L. Natu     
E-mail: cfo@tirupatiforge.com  

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Mr. Hiteshkumar G. Thummar
Chairman & Managing Director

DIN : 02112952

Mr. Bhavesh T. Barsiya
Whole Time Director

DIN : 05332180

Mr. Sachin P. Ravani
Non Executive &  Independent Director

DIN : 07874835

Mrs. Darshna H. Thummar
Non Executive & Non Independent Director

DIN : 07869257

Mr. Ramesh M. Patel
Non Executive &  Independent Director

DIN : 02738359

Mr. Anand M. Shrivastava
Non Executive &  Independent Director

DIN : 08684010

Ms. Jalpa N. Doshi (Resigned w.e.f.30.09.2020)

[ICSI Membership No.: ACS 54465]
Mr. Vivek M. Moliya (Appointed w.e.f. 01.10.2020)

[ICSI Membership No.: ACS 62092]
E-mail: cs@tirupatiforge.com

Plot No. 1-5, Survey No. 92/1, Near Shan Cement, Hadamtala Industrial Area,
 Taluka:Kotda Sangani, Hadamtala, Rajkot 360311  (Gujarat) India.

Tel. No. : +91 2827 270512  E-mail : info@tirupatiforge.com  Web : www.tirupatiforge.com

Mr. Ramesh M. Patel
Chairman

Mrs. Darshna H. Thummar
Member

Mr. Sachin P. Ravani
Member

Board of Directors

Chief Financial Officer

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

Registered Office

Audit Committee
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Nomination & Remuneration Committee 

Mr. Ramesh M. Patel
Member

Mrs. Darshna H. Thummar
Member

Mr. Sachin P. Ravani
Chairman

Mr. Ramesh M. Patel
Member

Mrs. Darshna H. Thummar
Member

Mr. Sachin P. Ravani
Chairman

Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee 

Mr. Bhavesh T. Barasiya 
Member

Mr. Hitesh G. Thummar 
Member

Mrs. Darshna H. Thummar
Chairman

Complaints Committee for Sexual Harassment Complaints Redressal 

Mr. Bhavesh T. Barasiya 
Member

Mr. Sachin P. Ravani 
Member

Mr. Hitesh G. Thummar  
Chairman

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee 

Statutory Auditor 

 

Maharishi & Co., 
Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No.: 124872W 
“Aparna”, Behind Jivandeep Hospital, Limda Line, Jamnagar 361001 Gujarat. India.

E-mail: info@jainandmaharishi.com

 

 

Secretarial Auditor
Mr. Piyush Jethva, 

Practicing Company Secretary 

ICSI Membership No.: F6377 

COP No.: 5452 

The Imperia, Ofce No. 806, Opp: Shashtri Maidan,  Above: Federal Bank,

Limda Chowk, Subhash Road, Rajkot – 360 001Gujarat. India.

E-mail: piyushjethva@gmail.com
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Internal Auditor

“Sardhara House”, Bhaktinagar Soc., Marg-1, Near Vrundavan Dairy, 

KantaStri Vikas Gruh Road,  Rajkot 360 002 

Gujarat. India. E-mail: mbsardhara@gmail.com

M. B. Sardhara& Associates, 
Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No.: 127974W 

 

 

Stock Exchange

National Stock Exchange of India Ltd. 

Exchange Plaza, Plot No. C/1, 

G Block Bandra-Kurla Complex, Bandra (E), 

Mumbai-400051, Maharashtra, India.

Website: www.nseindia.com 

 

 

Registrar & Share Transfer Agents 

Link Intime India Private Limited 

C 101, 247 Park, L.B.S. Marg, Vikhroli(West),  

Mumbai 400 083,Maharashtra, India.

E-mail:rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in

www.linkintime.co.inWebsite: 

 

 

Bankers to the Company

Indian Overseas Bank 
Vaniavadi Branch, Near, Bhaktinagar Circle, 

Rajkot - 360 002 (Gujarat) India.
E-mail:iob0427@iob.in
Website: www.iob.in
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MESSAGE FROM CHAIRMAN 

&

MANAGING DIRECTOR

Dear Shareholders,

My sincere wishes that each of you is safe and well in these times.

I am humbled to write this letter as the Chairman of Tirupati Forge Limited, where I have been serving as 

a Managing Directors on Board.

For more than a year now, the world has been in the grip of a crisis in the form of the COVID-19 pandemic. 

The Covid-19 pandemic has had a signicant impact on lives, livelihoods, and the business. It is a health 

crisis of the kind we have not seen in generations. My heart goes out to everyone out there who has 

suffered the loss of loved ones. Given the scientic progress we have made over the past year, I am 

condent we will eventually get the pandemic under control. Until then, I urge you to stay safe, follow 

Covid discipline, and get vaccinated if you are eligible.

At this point of time, I have privilege to share main highlights of the last nancial year's performance 

(2020-2021): (In lakh)

♣ Total Revenue from Operations is increased from Rs. 2,796.95/- of previous F.Y 2019-20 to Rs.

 3,097.27/- of the reporting nancial year which is 10.74 % grow in compare to the last nancial

 year.

♣ Net Prot is also increased from Rs. 27.51/- of previous F.Y. 2019-20 to Rs. 39.39 /- of the reporting 

nancial year which is 43.61 % grow in compare to the last nancial year.

♣ Earnings per Share (EPS) for the F.Y. 2020-21 is Rs. 0.36/- as compared to Rs. 0.27/- of F.Y. 2019-20.

Our leadership team came together as One Tirupati and has been united and focused on ensuring we

were delivering what our clients need. Our cross-functional teams have brought the best of all our

capabilities together by working in unity, to support and drive journeys of our clients. 

As a Company, we have always strived to better our own work by continually deepening our domain 

expertise, adding value and expanding our product portfolio. The relentless commitment and dedication 

of every member of the Tirupati Forge family helped the business overcome many challenges in the past 

year. 

I am pleased to announce that past year, the Company's Security is admitted to the dealings of Capital 

Market segment of Main Board at National Stock Exchange of India Limited w.e.f August 04, 2020. 
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We are resolute in our endeavor to keep up our strong performance, and to keep creating long-term 

value for our stakeholders. I look forward to another successful year ahead.

I would like to take this opportunity to thank all our people who have been tirelessly working to ensure 

that we continue to serve the people of this country through this extremely challenging year. Most 

importantly, I commend the spirit of each member of the TFL family for staying true to our values and to 

our vision and for being the engine that powers TFL's growth and success.

I hope that each one of you and your families continue to stay safe.

Sd/-

Hiteshkumar G. Thummar

Chairman & Managing Director

[DIN: 02112952]

09Tirupati Forge Limited  Annual Report 2020-21



No�ce to the
AGM 2020-21

Forge Limited



N O T I C E

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (AGM)

NOTICE is hereby given that the Ninth Annual General Meeting (AGM)  of the Members  
of TIRUPATI FORGE LIMITED (“the Company”)  is scheduled to be held on Tuesday 
September 28, 2021 at 12:00 p.m.  to transact the following businesses: 

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1) To Receive, Consider and adopt the nancial Statement including Audited Balance Sheet 
st

as on 31  March 2021 and Prot & Loss Account for the year ended on that date and 

reports of Board of Directors and Auditor thereon and Cash Flow Statement and other 

various schedule prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.

 To consider and if thought t, to pass with or without modication(s) the following 

Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT, Audited Financial Statement nancial year ended on March 31, 
2021 including Balance Sheet of the Company as at March 31, 2021, Statement of Prot 
and Loss for the year ended on March 31, 2021 and Cash Flow Statement along with 
Audit Report for the year ended on March 31, 2021 and notes to the results annexed 
thereto be and are hereby considered and adopted.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, pursuant to provision of section 134 and other 
applicable provisions, if any of the companies Act 2013, read with relevant rules made 
there under including any statutory modication or re-enactment thereto, the report of 
Board of Directors of the company for the year ended on 31st March 2021, together with 
all annexure thereto be and is hereby considered and adopted.

2) To appoint a Director in place of Smt. Darshna Hiteshbhai Thummar, Non-Executive 

Director [DIN: 07869257], who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers herself for re-

appointment.

To consider and if thought t, to pass with or without modication(s) the following 

Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

 “RESOLVED THAT, pursuant to provision of section 152 and other applicable 

provisions, if any of the companies Act 2013, read with relevant rules made there under 

including any statutory modication or re-enactment thereto, Smt. Darshna Hiteshbhai 

Thummar, Non-Executive Director [DIN: 07869257], who retires by rotation at this 

meeting, be and is hereby appointed as Non-Executive director of the company, liable to 

retire by rotation.
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SPECIAL BUSINESS:

3. TO APPROVE REQUESTS OF RECLASSIFICATION FROM 'PROMOTER AND PROMOTER
GROUP' CATEGORY TO 'PUBLIC' CATEGORY:

To consider and if thought t, to pass with or without modication(s) the following Resolution as 
an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT, pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 31A of SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, (including any statutory modication(s) or re-
enactment thereof for the time being in force) and other applicable provisions, and subject to necessary 
approvals from the SEBI Board, Stock Exchanges and other appropriate statutory authorities as may 
be necessary, the consent of the members be and is hereby accorded to reclassify the following 
person(s) / entity(ies) (hereinafter individually and jointly referred to as the applicants) from 
“Promoter and Promoter Group” category to “Public” category -

4.  SUB-DIVISION OF EQUITY SHARES FROM THE FACE VALUE OF RS. 10/- EACH TO FACE 
VALUE OF RS. 2/- PER SHARE:

To consider and if thought t, to pass with or without modication(s) the following Resolution as 
an Ordinary Resolution:

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, in supersession of any provision etc., their special rights, if any, with 
respect to the Company through formal or informal arrangements including through any 
shareholders agreements, if any, stand withdrawn/terminated and be null and void, with immediate 
effect.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, Mr. Hiteshkumar G. Thummar - Chairman and Managing Director, 
Mr. Bhavesh T. Barasiya - Wholetime Director and Mr. Vivek M. Moliya, Company Secretary and 
Compliance ofcer of the Company, be and are hereby severally authorised to intimate stock exchange 
post members approval, and to submit a reclassication application to the stock exchanges within the 
permitted time, and to do all such acts and deeds as may be necessary to complete procedure of 
reclassication and give effect to this resolution.”

Sr.
No.

Name of the Person
Number of Equity

Shares Held % of Shareholding

1 Ajay Vithalbhai Sardhara 61,440 0.55

2 Vishal Ramjibhai Sorathiya 72,640 0.65

“RESOLVED THAT, pursuant to the provisions of sections 61 and all other applicable provisions, if 
any of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder including the statutory modication(s) 
or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force and the relevant provisions of the Memorandum 
and Articles of Association of the Company and Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 issued by the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (SEBI) and the other Rules, Regulations, Circulars, Notications, etc. and subject to 
approvals, consents, permissions and sanctions as may be necessary from any authority, whether 
statutory or otherwise, the Authorized Share Capital of the Company comprising of 1,15,00,000 (One 
Crore Fifteen Lakh) Ordinary Shares of the face value of Rs.10/- (Rupees Ten Only) each aggregating 
to Rs.11,50,00,000/- (Rupees Eleven Crore Fifty Lakh Only) be and is hereby subdivided into 
5,75,00,000 (Five Crore Seventy Lakh only) Ordinary Shares of face value of Rs. 2/- (Rupees Two Only) 
each, with effect from the 'Record Date' to be determined or as determined by the Board of Directors 
(hereinafter referred to as 'the Board', which expression shall be deemed to include the existing 
Committee of Directors thereof) from time to time.” Accordingly, the existing Clause V of the 
Memorandum of Association of the Company substituted with the following new Clause V:
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“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, The issued, subscribed and fully paid-up Ordinary Share Capital of 
the Company Rs. 11,20,00,000 (Rupees Eleven Crore Twenty Lakh Only), comprising of 1,12,00,000 
(One Crore Twelve Lakh Only) Ordinary Shares of the face value of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten Only) each be 
sub-divided into 5,60,00,000 (Five Crore Sixty Lakh Only) Ordinary Shares of the face value of Rs. 2/- 
(Rupees Two Only) each as on the Record Date to be determined or as determined by the Board or any 
Committee thereof from time to time.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, incase of fractional shares, if any arising out of the issue and 
allotment of the subdivided Shares, the Company shall not issue any certicate or coupon in respect 
thereof but all such fractional entitlements, if any, shall be consolidated and shall be allotted by the 
Board or any Committee thereof in either dematerialized form or in physical form or partly in 
dematerialized form and partly in physical form to one of the Directors of the Company, whether 
executive or otherwise, by whatever name called, as had been nominated or to be nominated by the 
Board or any Committee thereof for this purpose, who shall hold the same as trustee(s) for the 
members entitled thereto, and distribute the same to Members in proportion to their fractional 
entitlements post issue of bonus share thereon or otherwise.”

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, pursuant to the sub-division of the Equity Shares as aforesaid, the 
existing share certicate(s) in relation to the existing equity shares having face value of 10/- Each 
(Rupee Ten Only) held in the physical form, if any, shall be deemed to have been automatically 
cancelled and be of no effect on and from the record date (as determined by the Board of Directors of 
the Company) and the Company may, without requiring the surrender of the existing share 
certicate(s), issue and dispatch the new share certicate(s) of the Company in lieu of such existing 
share certicate(s) subject to the provisions of the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 
2014 amended from time to time and in the case of equity shares held in the dematerialized form, the 
number of sub-divided Equity Shares be credited to the respective beneciary accounts of the 
Members with the depository participants, in lieu of the existing credits representing the equity shares 
of the Company before sub-division and the Company shall undertake such Corporate Action(s) as 
may be necessary in relation to the existing equity shares of the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution, the Board of 
Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things 
and give such directions as it may in its absolute discretion deem necessary, proper or desirable and to 
settle any question, difculty or doubt that may arise in this regard and also to the extent permitted by 
law, all or any of the powers herein conferred to any Committee of Directors or any Director(s) or any 
other Key Managerial Personnel or any other Ofcer(s) of the Company.”

5.  TO CONSIDER AND APPROVE INCREASE AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL AND 
ALTERATION OF CAPITAL CLAUSE OF THE MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION OF THE 
COMPANY:

To consider and if thought t, to pass with or without modication(s) the following Resolution as an 
Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT, pursuant to the provisions of Section 13, 61 read with Section 64 and other applicable 
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any amendment thereto or re-enactment thereof) 
and the rules framed there under, the consent of the members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to 
increase the Authorized Share Capital of the Company to Rs. 20,00,00,000/-(Rupees Twenty Crore Only) 

divided into 10,00,00,000 (Ten Crore only) Equity Shares of Rs. 2/- (Rupees Two Only) each ranking 
pari-passu in all respect with the existing Equity Shares of the Company;

 "V. The Authorised Share Capital of the Company is Rs. 11,50,00,000 (Rupees Eleven Crore Fifty Lakh 
only) divided into 5,75,00,000 equity shares of face value of Rs. 2/- each."
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6. ISSUE OF BONUS SHARES:

 To consider and if thought t, to pass with or without modication(s) the following Resolution as
Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT, in accordance with Section 63 and other applicable provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013, read with Rule 14 of the Companies (Share Capital & Debentures) Rules, 2014 (including any 
statutory modication(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), the relevant provisions of 
the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company and the recommendation of the Board 
of Directors (hereinafter referred to as 'The Board', which expression shall be deemed to include a 
committee of directors duly authorised in this behalf) of the Company and subject to the regulations 
and guidelines issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI), including the  Securities 
And Exchange Board Of India (Issue Of Capital And Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 (as 
amended from time to time) and applicable Regulatory Authorities, and such permissions, sanctions 
and approvals as may be required in this regard, consent of the Members be and is hereby accorded to 
the Board for capitalization of such sum standing to the credit of securities premium / free reserves of 
the Company, as may be considered necessary by the Board, for the purpose of issuance of bonus 
shares not exceeding 4,20,00,000 (Four Crore Twenty Lakh Only) of Re. 2/- (Rupee Two only) each, 
credited as fully paid-up shares to the holders of the existing equity shares of the Company post sub-
division, whose names appear in the Register of Members maintained by the Company's Registrars 
and Transfer Agents / List of Benecial Owners, as received from the National Securities Depository 
Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL), on such date ('record date') 
as xed in this regard by the Board, in the proportion of [3:4] 3 (Three) equity share for every 4 (Four) 
existing equity share held by the Members.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, the Bonus Shares so allotted shall rank pari-passu in all respects with 

the fully paid-up equity shares of the Company as existing on the 'record date' (as determined by the 

Board) and shall always be subject to the terms and conditions contained in the Memorandum and 

Articles of Association of the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, the Board be and is hereby authorized to take all other steps as may be 

necessary to give effect to the aforesaid resolution and determine all other terms and conditions of the 

issue of bonus shares as the Board may in its absolute discretion deem t.

By Order of Board of Directors
For, TIRUPATI FORGE LIMITED

Sd/-

Vivek M. Moliya

Company Secretary and Compliance Ofcer

Hadamtala (Rajkot)

August 26, 2021

Registered Ofce:
Plot No. 1-9, Survey No. 92/1, Near Shan Cement, Hadamtala Industrial Area,
Taluka: Kotda Sangani Hadamtala, Rajkot 360 311 Gujarat. India.
Tel. No.: +91 2827 270512 E-mail : info@tirupatiforge.com Website : www.tirupatiforge.com

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, the Memorandum of Association of the Company be and is hereby 
altered by substituting the existing Clause V thereof by the following new Clause V as under:

V. The Authorised Share Capital of the Company is Rs. 20,00,00,000 (Rupees Twenty  Crore only) divided 
into 10,00,00,000 (Ten Crore Only) Equity Shares of Rs.  2/- (Rupees Two) each.

"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, the directors of the Company be and are hereby severally authorised 
to do all such act(s), deed(s) and things including all forms, documents ling with Registrar of 
Companies as may be necessary and incidental to give effect to the aforesaid Resolution."
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N O T E S

 1.  The following is annexed with this Notice: 

 (i)  A Statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”),     

relating to the Special Business to be transacted at the Annual General Meeting 

(“Meeting”) is annexed hereto.
  (ii)  Instructions for e-voting. 

 2.   Based on the consent received from CS Piyush Jethva, (FCS No. 6377, C.P. No. 5452), 
  Practicing Company Secretary, the Board has appointed him as the Scrutinizer to
  scrutinize the process in a fair and transparent manner. 

3.  Members may note that M/s Maharishi & Co., Chartered Accountants (Firm Reg.  
 No.124872W) were appointed as Statutory Auditors of the company at the 7th 
 Annual General Meeting (AGM) held on 20th September, 2019, to hold their ofce 
 for a period of 3 consecutive years till the conclusion of the 10th AGM to be held 
 during the year 2022. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide notication dated 7th 
 May, 2018 had amended Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 by omitting the 
 requirement of seeking ratication of the members for appointment of statutory 
 auditors at every AGM. Hence, no resolution is being proposed for ratication of 

th the appointment of Statutory Auditors at this 9  Annual General Meeting. 

4. A Member entitled to attend and vote, is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote 

instead of himself and the proxy need not be a Member of the Company. 

A person can act as proxy on behalf of Members not exceeding Fifty (50) and holding in the 

aggregate not more than ten percent (10%) of the total share capital of the Company. In case 

a proxy is proposed to be appointed by a Member holding more than 10% of the total share 

capital of the Company carrying voting rights, then such proxy shall not act as a proxy for 

any other Member.

The instrument of Proxy, in order to be effective, should be deposited at the Registered 

Ofce of the Company, duly completed, signed and stamped, not less than 48 hours before 

the commencement of the Meeting. Proxies submitted on behalf of Limited Companies, 

Societies, etc., must be supported by appropriate resolutions/ authority, as applicable.

5. Corporate Members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend the 

Annual General Meeting, pursuant to Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013, are 

requested to send to the Company, a certied copy of relevant Board Resolution together 

with the respective specimen signatures of those representative(s) authorized under the 

said Resolution to attend and vote on their behalf at the Meeting.

6. Relevant documents referred to in the Notice are open for inspection by the members at the 

Registered Ofce of the Company on all working days (except Saturdays, Sundays and 

Public Holidays) during business hours up to the date of the Meeting. The aforesaid 

documents will be also available for inspection by members at the Meeting.
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7. In terms of the provisions of Section 152 of the Act, Smt. Darshna Hiteshkumar Thummar-Non-

executive director, is liable to retire by rotation at the Meeting. Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee and Board of Directors of the Company commend her respective re-appointment.

8. Details of Directors retiring by rotation/seeking appointment/re-appointment at the ensuing 

Meeting are provided in the “Annexure” to the Notice.

9. To prevent fraudulent transactions, members are advised to exercise due diligence and notify the 

Company of any change in address or demise of any member as soon as possible. Members are also 

advised not to leave their demat account(s) dormant for long. Periodic statement of holdings should be 

obtained from the concerned Depository Participant and holdings should be veried.

10. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent 

Account Number (PAN) by every participant in securities market. Members holding shares in 

electronic form are, therefore, requested to submit the PAN to their Depository Participants with 

whom they are maintaining their demat accounts.

11. Non-Resident Members: Non Resident Indian Members are requested to inform Registrar and 

Transfer Agents, immediately of:

a. Change in their residential status on return to India for permanent settlement.

b.  Particulars of their bank account maintained in India with complete name, branch, account type, 

account number, IFSC Code, MICR No. and address of the bank, if not furnished earlier.

12. The notice of AGM along with Annual Report for 2020-21 is being sent by electronic mode to all the 

members whose email IDs are registered with the Company/Depository Participant(s) unless any 

member has requested for a physical copy of the same. For members who have not registered their 

email addresses, physical copies are being sent by the permitted mode.

13. Members are requested to make all correspondence in connection with shares held by them by 

addressing letters directly to the Company or its RTA quoting their Folio number or their Client ID 

number with DPID number, as the case may be.

14. This notice along with Annual Report for 2020-21 is being sent to all members of the Company whose 
th

name appears in the Register of Members/ list of beneciaries received from the depositories as on 20   

August 2021. 

15. The entry to the meeting venue will be regulated by means of attendance slips. For attending the 

meeting, members, proxies and authorized representatives of the members, as the case may be, are 

requested to bring the enclosed attendance slip completed in all respects, including client ID and DP 

ID, and signed. Duplicate attendance slips will not be issued.

16. All members are requested to support Green Initiative of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, 

Government of India and register their email addresses to receive all these documents electronically 

from the Company in accordance with Rule 18 of the Companies (Management &Administration) 

Rules 2014 and Rule 11 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014. All the aforesaid documents have 

been uploaded on and are available for download from the Company's website at 

www.tirupatiforge.com.
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th22. A specimen of Attendance Slip, Proxy and the route map showing direction to reach the venue of the 9  

AGM form is given at the end of this notice as per the requirement of Secretarial Standards -2 on 

General Meeting so as to enable shareholders to attend meeting with complete documents.

23. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the 

Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended)and Regulation 44 of SEBI 

(Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (as amended), and the Circulars 

issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs dated April 08, 2020, April 13, 2020 and May 05, 2020 the 

Company is providing facility of remote e-voting to its Members in respect of the business to be 

transacted at the AGM. For this purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement with Linkintime 

India Private Limited for facilitating voting through electronic means, as the authorized agency. 

24. DISPATCH OF ANNUAL REPORT THROUGH ELECTRONIC MODE:

25. In compliance with the MCA Circulars and SEBI Circular dated May 12, 2020, along with new 

circular, Notice of the AGM along with the Annual Report 2021 is being sent only through 

electronic mode to those Members whose email addresses are registered with the 

Company/Depositories. Members may note that the Notice calling the AGM has been 

uploaded on the website of the Company at www.tirupatiforge.com The Notice can also be 

accessed from the websites of the Stock Exchange i.e. National Stock Exchange of IndiaLimited 

at www.nseindia.com respectively and the AGM Notice is also available on the website of 

Linktime (agency for providing the Remote e-Voting facility)  i.e.www.instavote.com. 

17. Rule 3 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules 2014 mandates that the register of 

members of all companies should include details pertaining to email address, permanent account 

number (PAN) or CIN, unique identication number, if any; father's/mother's/ spouse's name, 

occupation, status, nationality; in case member is a minor, name of guardian and the date of birth of the 

member, and name and address of nominee. All members are requested to update their details as 

aforesaid with their respective depository.

18. Members are requested to intimate changes, if any, pertaining to their name, postal address, email 

address, telephone/ mobile numbers, Permanent Account Number (PAN), mandates, nominations, 

power of attorney, bank details such as, name of the bank and branch details, bank account number, 

MICR code, IFSC code, etc., to their DPs in case the shares are held by them.

19. No gifts shall be provided to members before, during or after the AGM.

20. In case of joint holders attending the AGM, the Member whose name appears as the rst holder in the 

order of names as per the Register of Members of the Company will be entitled to vote.

21. Members seeking any information with regard to the accounts are requested to write to the Company 

at an early date i.e. at least 10 days before the annual general meetings through mail at 

cs@tirupatiforge.com, so as to enable the Management to keep the information ready at the AGM.
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1. Procedure for registration of e-mail address by the Members of the Company:-

i. For Temporary Registration:

The Members of the Company holding Equity Shares of the Company in Demat Form or Physical Form 

and who have not registered their e-mail addresses may temporarily get their e-mail addresses 

r e g i s t e r e d  w i t h  t h e  R T A /  L I I P L ,  b y  c l i c k i n g  t h e  l i n k 

:  and follow the registration process as https://linkintime.co.in/EmailReg/Email_Register.html

guided therein. The members are requested to provide details such as Name, Address, DPID, 

ClientID/ Folio No., PAN. Post successful registration of the e-mail address, the member would get 

soft copy of the AGM Notice and Annual Report 2020-21 and the procedure for e-voting along with the 

user-id to enable e-voting. In case of any query, a member may send an e-mail to RTA at 

rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in and/ or to the Company at cs@tirupatiforge.com 

ii. For Permanent Registration

It is claried that for permanent registration of e-mail address, the Members are requested to register 

their e-mail address, in respect of demat holdings with the respective Depository Participant (DP) and 

in respect of physical holdings, with the RTA of the Company by following the procedure prescribed 

by the Depository Participant or the RTA, respectively.

iii. Validation of e-mail ids

Those members who have already registered their e-mail address are requested to keep their e-mail 

addresses validated with their Depository Participants / the Company's RTA, to enable servicing of 

notices / documents / Annual Reports electronically to their e-mail address.

26. All the work related to share registry in terms of both physical and electronic are being conducted by 

Company's Registrar and Share Transfer Agent, Linkintime India Private Limited. The Shareholders 

are requested to send their communication to the RTA.

27. The person whose name is recorded in the Register of Members or in the register of benecial owners 

maintained by the depositories as on closing of Monday, September 20, 2021 i.e. cut-off date only shall 

be entitled to vote at the meeting. 

28. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books shall remain closed from Tuesday, September 21, 

2021 to Tuesday, September 28, 2021 (both days inclusive).
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THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR REMOTE E-
VOTING:

Pursuant to SEBI Circular dated December 9, 
2020,on e-Voting facility provided by listed 
companies, Individual shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode can vote through their 
demat account maintained with Depositories 
and Depository Participants only post June 9, 
2021.

Shareholders are advised to update their mobile 
number and e-mail in their demat accounts to 
access e-Voting facility.

Individual Shareholders holding securities in 
demat mode with NSDL

l If you are already a registered User for NSDL 
IDeAS facility, please visit the e-Services website 
of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the URL: 
https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal 
Computer or mobile. Once the home page of e-
Services is launched, click on the 'Benecial 
Owner' icon under 'Login' which is available 
under 'IDeAS' section. A new screen will open. 
Please enter your User ID and Password.

l After successful authentication, you will see 'e-
Voting services'. Click on 'Access to e-Voting' 
under 'e-Voting services' and you will see the 'e-
Voting page'. Click on Company name or e-
Voting service provider name and you will be re-
directed to e-Voting service provider website for 
casting your vote during the remote e-Voting 
period or for joining the virtual meeting and 
voting during the meeting.

l If the User is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, 
o p t i o n  t o  r e g i s t e r  i s  a v a i l a b l e  a t 
https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select 'Register 
O n l i n e  f o r  I D e A S '  p o r t a l  o r  c l i c k  a t 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/Ideas
DirectReg.jsp.

l Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web 
b r o w s e r  b y  t y p i n g  t h e  U R L : 
https://www.evoting. nsdl.com/ either on a 
Personal Computer or mobile. Once the home 
page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the 
icon 'Login '  which  i s  avai lable  under 
'Shareholder/Member' section. A new screen 
will open. Please enter your User ID i.e. 

your sixteen-digit demat ac count number (held 
with NSDL), Password/OTP and the Verication 
Code as shown on the screen. After successful 
authentication, you will be redirected to the NSDL 
site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on 
Company name or e-Voting service provider name 
and you will be redirected to e-Voting service 
provider website for casting your vote during the 
remote e-Voting period or for joining the virtual 
meeting and voting during the meeting.

Individual Shareholders holding securities in 
demat mode with CDSL

Existing Users, who have opted for Easi/Easiest, 
can login through their User ID and Password. 
Option will be made available to reach e-Voting 
page without any further authentication. The 
URLs for Users to login to Easi/Easiest are 
https://web.cdslindia.com/ myeasi/home/login 
or www.cdslindia.com and click on New System 
Myeasi.

After successful login on Easi/Easiest, the User 
will be able to see the E Voting Menu. The Menu 
will have links of e-Voting service provider i.e. 
NSDL, CDSL, LINKINTIME, KARVY. Click on e-
Voting service provider name to cast your vote.

If the User is not registered on Easi/Easiest, option 
t o  r e g i s t e r  i s  a v a i l a b l e  a t 
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration
/EasiRegistration.

Alternatively, Users can directly access e-Voting 
page by providing Demat Account Number and 
PAN No. from the link www.cdslindia.com home 
page. The system will authenticate the User by 
sending OTP on registered Mobile and Email as 
recorded in the Demat Account. After successful 
authentication, User will be provided links for the 
respective ESP where e-Voting is in progress.

Individual Shareholders (holding securities in 
demat mode) and login through their depository 
participants
Users can also login using the login credentials of 
their Demat Account through their Depository 
Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-
Voting facility.
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When you login, you will see e-Voting option. 
Once you click on the same, you will be 
redirected to NSDL/CDSL sites after successful 
authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting 
feature. Click on Company name or e-Voting 
service provider name and you will be 
redirected to e-Voting service provider website 
for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting 
period or joining the virtual meeting and voting 
during the meeting.

Individual Shareholders holding securities in 
Physical mode and e-Voting service Provider is 
LINKINTIME.

1. Open the internet browser and launch the 
URL: https://instavote.linkintime.co.in

l Click on 'Sign Up' under 'SHARE HOLDER' 
tab and register with your following details:-

A. User ID: Shareholders/members holding 
shares in physical form shall provide Event 
No + Folio Number registered with the 
Company.

B. PAN: Enter your 10-digit Permanent Account 
Number (PAN) (Members who have not 
updated their PAN with the Depository 
Participant (DP)/ Company) shall use the 
sequence number provided to you, if 
applicable.

C. D O B / D O I :  E n t e r  t h e  D a t e  o f  B i r t h 
(DOB)/Date of Incorporation (DOI) (As 
recorded with your DP/ Company - in 
DD/MM/YYYY format).

D. Bank Account Number: Enter your Bank 
Account Number (last four digits), as recorded  
with your DP/Company.

l Shareholders/members holding shares in 
physical form but have not recorded 'C' and 
'D', shall provide their Folio number in 'D' 
above

l Set the password of your choice (The 
password should contain minimum 8 
characters, at least one special Character 
(@!#$&*), at least one numeral, at least one 
alphabet and at least one capital letter).

l Click "conrm" (Your password is now 
generated).

2. Click on 'Login' under 'SHARE HOLDER' tab.

3. Enter your User ID, Password and Image 
Verication (CAPTCHA) Code and click on   
'Submit'.

4. After successful login, you will be able to see 
the notication for e-voting. Select 'View' I  
icon.

5.  E-voting page will appear.

6. Refer the Resolution description and cast your 
vote by selecting your desired option 'Favour / 
Against' (If you wish to view the entire 
Resolution details, click on the 'View 
Resolution' le link).

7. After selecting the desired option i.e. 'Favour/ 
Against' click on 'Submit'. A conrmation box 
will be displayed. If you wish to conrm your 
vote, click on 'Yes', else to change your vote, 
click on 'No' and accordingly modify your 
vote.

 Institutional shareholders:

 Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than 
Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians 
are required to log on the e-voting system of 
LIIPL at https://instavote. linkintime.co.in 
and register themselves as 'Custodian/ 
Mutual Fund/Corporate Body'. They are also 
required to upload a scanned certied true 
copy of the Board Resolution/Authority 
Letter/Power of Attorney, etc. together with 
attested specimen signature of the duly 
authorised representative(s) in PDF format in 
the 'Custodian/Mutual Fund/Corporate 
Body' login for the Scrutinizer to verify the 
same.

Individual Shareholders, holding securities in 
physical mode, whose evoting service provider is 
LINKINTIME and who have forgotten their 
password:

l Click on 'Login' under 'SHARE HOLDER' 
tab and further Click 'forgot password?'
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l Enter User ID, select Mode and Enter Image 
Verication (CAPTCHA) Code and Click on 
'Submit'.

l Shareholders/Members having valid email 
address, the Password will be sent to his/her 
registered e-mail address.

l Shareholders/Members  can set  the 
password of his/her choice by providing the 
information about the particulars of the 
Security Question and Answer, PAN, 
DOB/DOI, Bank Account Number (last four 
digits) etc. as mentioned above.

l The Password should contain minimum 8 
characters, at least one special character 
(@!#$&*), at least one numeral, at least one 
alphabet and at least one capital letter.

Individual Shareholders, holding securities 
in demat mode, with NSDL/CDSL and have 
forgotten their password:

l Shareholders/Members who are unable to 
retrieve User ID/Password are advised to use 
Forget User ID and Forget Password option 
available at above mentioned depository / 
depository participant's website.

l It is strongly recommended not to share your 
Password with any other person and take   
u tmost  care  to  keep  your  password 
condential.

l Shareholders/Members holding shares in 
physical form, the details can be used only 
for voting on the Resolutions contained in 
this Notice.

l During the voting period, Shareholders/ 
Members can login any number of times till 
they have voted on the Resolutions for a 
particular 'Event'.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in demat mode:

In case Shareholders/Members holding 
securities in demat mode have technical 
issues related to login through Depository 
i.e. NSDL/CDSL, they may contact the 
respective helpdesk given below:-

I n d i v i d u a l 
Shareholders
H o l d i n g 
securities in
demat mode 
w i t h  N S D L

Members facing technical issue 
in login can contact NSDL 
helpdesk by sending a request 
at evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at 
toll free nos.: 1800 1020 990 and 
1800 22 44 30.

I n d i v i d u a l 
Shareholders
H o l d i n g 
securities in 
demat mode 
w i t h  C D S L

Members facing technical issue 
in login can contact CDSL 
helpdesk by sending a request at 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.co
m or contact at 022 - 2305 8738 or 
022 - 2305 8542/43.

Login Type Help Desk Details

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in physical mode/Institutional 
shareholders and e-Voting service Provider is 
LINKINTIME.

In case Shareholders/Members holding securities 
in physical mode/Institutional shareholders have 
any queries regarding e-Voting, they may refer the 
Frequently Asked Questions ('FAQs') and 
InstaVote  e-Voting manual  avai lable  at 
https://instavote.linkintime.co.in, under Help 
S e c t i o n  o r  s e n d  a n  e m a i l  t o 
enotices@linkintime.co.in or contact on:- Tel: 022 - 
4918 6000.

GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS:

1. The voting rights of members shall be in 
proportion to their shares of the paid-up equity 
share capital of the Company as on the cut-off 
date of Monday, September 20, 2021.

 2. process at the AGM is conducted in a fair and 
transparent manner.

3. The Scrutinizer shall after the conclusion of 
voting at the AGM, unblock the votes cast 
through remote e-voting in the presence of at 
least two witnesses not in the employment of 
the Company and shall make, within two 
working days of the conclusion of the AGM, a 
consolidated Scrutinizer's Report of the total 
votes cast in favour/against, if any, to the 
Chairperson or a person authorized in writing, 
who shall countersign the same and declare the 
result of the voting forthwith.

4. The Results declared along with the Report of 
the Scrutinizer shall be placed on the website of 
the Company www.tirupatiforge.com and on 
the  LI IPL websi te  ht tps ://instavote . 
linkintime.co.in and shall also be forwarded to 
National Stock Exchange of India Ltd (NSE).
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STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 (“THE ACT”) 

ITEM NO. 3 : TO APPROVE REQUESTS OF RECLASSIFICATION FROM 'PROMOTER AND   
  PROMOTER GROUP' CATEGORY TO 'PUBLIC' CATEGORY:

Regulation 31A of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, provides a 
mechanism regarding reclassication from “Promoter and Promoter Group” category to “Public” 
category. In terms of the said Regulation, the Company received requests on 25th August, 2021 for 
reclassication from the following shareholders regarding their respective shareholding into the 
Company –

The following Statement sets out all material facts relating to the Special Business mentioned in the Notice:

Sr.
No.

Name of the Person
Number of Equity

Shares Held % of Shareholding

1 Ajay Vithalbhai Sardhara 61,440 0.55

2 Vishal Ramjibhai Sorathiya 72,640 0.65

On the basis of the requests received by the Company and pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 
31A(3)(b) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015, the aforesaid shareholders seeking reclassication have 
conrmed that –

I)  They, together do not hold more than ten per cent of the total Voting Rights in the Company;
ii)  They do not exercise control over the affairs of the Company directly or indirectly;
iii) They do not have any special rights with respect to the listed entity through formal or informal  
 arrangements including through any shareholder agreements;
iv) They do not represent on the board of directors (including not having a nominee director) of  the
 Company;
v)  They do not act as a key managerial person in the Company;
vi) They are not 'wilful defaulters' as per the Reserve Bank of India Guidelines;
vii) They are not fugitive economic offenders.

Further, the aforesaid shareholders have conrmed that subsequent to reclassication, they would 
continue to comply with the requirements as mentioned in Regulation 31A(4) of the SEBI Listing 
Regulations, 2015.

The said requests for reclassication were considered and analyzed by the Board of Directors at its meeting 
held on 26th August, 2021, which require members' approval by way of a Ordinary Resolution, and stock 
exchanges' approval subsequently. 

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company, or their respective relatives are in any 
way concerned or interested in the resolution set out at Item No. 3 of the Notice.

Board of Directors recommends to pass the Resolution at Item No. 3 as an Ordinary Resolution.

ITEM NO 4: SUB-DIVISION OF EQUITY SHARES FROM THE FACE VALUE OF RS. 10/- EACH TO 
FACE VALUE OF RS. 2/- PER SHARE:

As the shareholders are aware that the Equity Shares of the Company are listed and traded on National 
Stock Exchange of India Limited [NSE]. In order to provide enhanced liquidity to the Company's equity 
shares in the Stock Market and to make it more affordable for small investors, it is proposed to sub-divide 
each equity share of face value of Rs. 10/- each into the face value of Rs. 2/- each pursuant to the provisions 
of Section 61(1) (d) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), the rules made thereunder and other applicable 
provisions.
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The Record Date for the aforesaid sub-division of equity shares shall be xed by the Board (including any 
Committee thereof) after the approval of the shareholders is obtained for the proposed sub-division.

In the opinion of the Board, proposed sub-division of the equity shares is in the best interest of the 
Company and the investors, therefore the Board at its meeting held on August 26th, 2021, approved the 
aforesaid sub-division subject to requisite approval of the shareholders. It is informed that there will not be 
any change in the amount of authorized, subscribed and paid-up Share capital of the Company on account 
of sub-division of equity shares.

The Board, therefore, recommends resolutions set out under business item no. 4 for approval of the 
shareholders by way of Ordinary Resolutions.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and/or their relatives are, in any way, 
concerned or interested, nancially or otherwise, in the resolutions set out under business item nos. 4

Item No 5 : TO CONSIDER AND APPROVE ALTERATION OF CAPITAL CLAUSE OF THE 
MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION OF THE COMPANY:

The present Authorized Share Capital of the Company is Rs.11,50,00,000/- (Rupees Eleven Crore Fifty 
Lakh only). In view of the proposal for issue of sub-divided shares, as referred under Item No. 4, it is 
proposed to sub-divide the number of equity shares underlying the Authorized Share Capital of the 
Company from 1,15,00,000 (One Crore Fifteen Lakh only) ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten Only) 
each to 5,75,00,000 (Five Crore Seventy Five Lakh Only) Ordinary Shares of the face value of Rs. 2/- 
(Rupees Two Only).

The Board of Directors at their meeting held on August 26th, 2021 approved the proposal to increase the 
Authorized Share Capital of the Company and consequent amendments to the Memorandum of the 
Company. Increase in Authorized Share Capital would necessitate amendment to Clause V of the 
Memorandum of Association of Company and would require members' approval by passing ordinary 
Resolutions. The Authorised Share Capital after increase will be as under:

V. The Authorised Share Capital of the Company is Rs. 20,00,00,000 (Rupees Twenty  Crore only) divided 
into 10,00,00,000 (Ten Crore Only) Equity Shares of Rs. 2/- (Rupees Two) each.

The Board of Directors of your Company consider that the proposed resolutions are in the interest of the 
Company and pursuant to Regulation 17(11) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended, the Board recommends them 
for your approval as Ordinary Resolution.

No person, as specied under Section 102(1)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013, is in any way concerned or 
interested, except their shareholding, in these Resolutions proposed to be passed.

ITEM NO. 6:  ISSUE OF BONUS SHARES:

The Company has reserves and surplus of Rs. 9,56,23,709 as on March 31, 2021. The Board of Directors of 
the Company at their Meeting held on August 26, 2021, considered it desirable to recommend issue of 
Bonus Shares in the ratio of 3:4 i.e. 3 (Three) equity share for every 4 (Four) existing equity share held by the 
Members post sub-division by capitalization of Reserves and Surplus of the Company subject to approval 
of the Shareholders and such other authorities as may be necessary.

Accordingly, the resolution seeks approval of the shareholders for capitalizing Rs. 8,40,00,000/- (Rupees 
Eight Crore Forty Lakh Only) out of the amount standing to the credit of the Reserves and surplus account 
and issue of bonus shares out of the same on the terms and conditions set out in the resolution. The paid up 
capital of the Company after bonus issue will be Rs. 19,60,00,000/- (Rupees Nineteen Crore Sixty Lakh 
Only).

The Bonus shares on allotment shall rank pari-passu with existing Equity Shares of the Company and 
the bonus shares are entitled for dividend declared after the allotment shares.
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The proposed Bonus Issue is not in lieu of Dividend.

No allotment letter will be issued. For shares held in Demat mode, the credit of the Bonus shares will be 
given directly to their Demat Account. 

None of the Directors/Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives is concerned or interested in the 
resolution except to the extent their eligibility of bonus shares on bases of their shareholding in the 
Company. 

Members are requested to pass the Resolution at Item No. 6 as an Ordinary Resolution.

By Order of Board of Directors
For, TIRUPATI FORGE LIMITED

Sd/-

Vivek M. Moliya
Company Secretary and Compliance Ofcer

Place: Hadamtala (Rajkot)
Date: August 26, 2021
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Annexure

Information on Director recommended for appointment / reappointment as required under 

Regulation 36 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and SS-

2 as prescribed by ICSI.

Sr. 
No. Particulars Information 

01 Name of Director  

 02 07869257 

03 Category of Directorship Promoter Non Executive 

04 Date of Birth 29/12/1985 

05 Brief Resume of Director  Smt. Darshna Hiteshbhai Thummar is engaged with
the Company since 31st July, 2017. She is Graduate
from Saurashtra University. She is having work
Experience of more than 05 Years in the Forging
Industry. 

06 

07 

08 

09.  

10. 

Director
Number

Identication

Nature of his expertise in
specic functional areas

She is the engaged in strategic Management of our
Company and has been instrumental in handling
Human Resource Management of our Company.

Disclosure of relationships
between Directors inter-se

Shri. Hiteshkumar G. Thummar - Husband of
Smt. Darshana H. Thummar

Names of listed entities in
which the person also
hlolds the Directorship

Except Tirupati Forge Limited, she does not  hold
directorship in any Listed Company.

Chairman / Member of the
Committees of the Board
of Directors of the
Company. #

Membership in Committee - 2
Chairmanship in Committee - 0

Chairman / Member of
Committees of the Board

1.  Audit Committee
2.  Nomination and Remuneration Committee
3.  Stakeholder Relationship Committee
4.  Complaints Committee for Sexual Harassment

Complaints Redressal

Smt. Darshana Hiteshbhai Thummar

11.

No. of Shares held in the
Company as on 31st. March,
2021

Disclosure of Disqualication She is not disqualied from being appointed as a
Director

2,95,360 Shares12.

13. Terms and condition for
appointment / re-appointment

Non-Executive Director, liable to retire by rotation

14. NilRemunerations Last drawn

11Number of Board Meetings
attend during the year

15.

Not Applicable15. Justication for choosing
the independent Director

# Audit Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee have been considered.
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ATTENDANCE  SLIP

[Please ll in this attendance slip and hand it over to ENTRANCE OF THE MEETING HALL]

Name of the Shareholder  

 

Address of the Shareholder 
  

Registered Folio  No. /Client ID  

DP ID  

Name of the Authorised 

Representative/Proxy, if any  

 

 

No. of Shares held   

 

 

  

 

 
Notes:  

1. Shareholder/ Proxy holder wishing to attend the meeting must bring the Attendance Slip to the meeting 

and handover at the entrance duly signed.  

 

2. Shareholder/Proxy holder desiring to attend the meeting may bring his /her copy of the Notice of the 

AGM for reference at the meeting.  

 

3. Strikeout the options which are not applicable.  

  

th
I hereby record my / our presence at the 9  ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the Company

being held on Tuesday, September 28, 2021 at 12:00 p.m. at Plot No. 1-5, Survey No. 92/1, Near

Shan Cement, Hadamtala Industrial Area, Taluka : Kotda Sangani, Hadamtala

Rajkot - 360 311. Gujarat India

Signature of the shareholders / Proxy Present /Authorised Representative
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[Pursuant to Section 105 (96) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules 19(3) of the Companies 

Management and Administration Rules 2014]  
 

Name of the Company   

Registered Ofce  
 Plot No. 1 -5, Survey No. 92/1, Near Shan Cement, Hadamtala Industrial 

Area, N.H. 27, Taluka: Kotda Sangani, Hadamtala Rajkot-360 311 Gujarat India 

 

Name of the Member (s)   

Registered Address   

E-mail Id  

Folio No. / Client Id   

DP/ ID  
 

I /We, being the member(s) of …………… Shares of the above-named Company, hereby appoint:  

(1)  Name:   Address:  

 E-Mail Id   Signature:  Or falling 
him/her; 

(2)  Name:   Address:  

 E-Mail Id   Signature:  Or falling 
him/her; 

(3)  Name:   Address:  

 E-Mail Id   Signature:   

 

 
Signed this ……. day of……...………. 2021  
 
 ___________________________                                           __________________________ 
Signature of Shareholder (s)  Signature of Proxy holder(s) 
 
Notes: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the registered

ofce of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the Commencement of the meeting.
 

Afx 
Revenue 
Stamp of
Rs.1/-

 

PROXY FORM
FORM NO : MGT-11

TIRUPATI FORGE LIMITED [CIN : L27320GJ2012PLC071594]

 

Sr. No. Resolutions For  Against  

·  Ordinary Businesses:    

1.  

 

  

2.  

·  Special Businesses:    

3.  r 

 

  

4.   

 

  

5.     

6.    

To Receive, Consider and adopt the nancial Statement including Audited Balance 
Sheet as on 31st March 2021 and Prot & Loss Account for the year ended on that 
date and reports of Board of Directors and Auditor thereon and Cash Flow 
Statement and other various schedule prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013

To appoint a Director in place of Mrs. Darshna Hiteshbhai Thummar, Non-
Executive Director [DIN: 07869257], who retires by rotation and being eligible, 
offers herself for re-appointment.

To Approve Requests Of Reclassication From 'Promoter And Promoter Group' 
Category To 'Public' Category

Sub-Division Of Equity Shares From The Face Value Of Rs. 10/- Each To Face Value 
of Rs. 2/-Per Share:

Approval of Increase in Authorised Capital and Change in Clause V of MOA

Approval of Issue of Bonus shares 

as my /our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my /our behalf at the Annual General 
Meeting of the Company to be held on Tuesday, September 28, 2021 at 12:00 p.m. at Plot No. 1-5, Survey 
No. 92/1, Near Shan Cement, Hadamtala Industrial Area, Taluka: Kotda Sangani, Hadamtala Rajkot 
360 011 Gujarat India, and any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:
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Notes: 

1. This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered 

Ofce of the Company, not less than forty-eight hours before the commencement of the Meeting.

2. A proxy need not be a member of the Company and shall prove his identity at the time of attending the 

Meeting.

3. A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fty and holding in the aggregate not 

more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. A Member holding 

more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights may appoint a single 

person as proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy for any other person or shareholder.

4. This is only optional. Please put a '√' in the appropriate column against the resolutions indicated in the 

Box. If you leave the 'For' or 'Against' column blank against any or all the resolutions, your proxy will 

be entitled to vote (on poll) at the Meeting in the manner he/she thinks appropriate.

5. Appointing a proxy does not prevent a member from attending the Meeting in person if he / she so 

wishes. When a Member appoints a proxy and both the Member and proxy attend the Meeting, the 

proxy will stand automatically revoked.

6. In the case of jointholders, the signature of any one holder will be sufcient, but names of all the 

jointholders should be stated.

7. This form of proxy shall be signed by the appointer or his attorney duly authorised in writing, or if the 

appointer is a body corporate, be under its seal or be signed by an ofcer or an attorney duly authorised 

by it.

8. This form of proxy will be valid only if it is duly completed in all respects, properly stamped and 

submitted as per the applicable law. Incomplete form or form which remains unstamped or 

inadequately stamped or form upon which the stamps have not been cancelled will be treated as 

invalid.

9. Undated proxy form will not be considered valid.

10. If Company receives multiple proxies for the same holdings of a member, the proxy which is dated last 

will be considered valid; if they are not dated or bear the same date without specic mention of time, all 

such multiple proxies will be treated as invalid.
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ROUTE MAP OF THE VENUE OF AGM

Plot No. 1-5, Survey No. 92/1, Near Shan Cement, 

Hadamtala Industrial Area, Taluka: Kotda Sangani 

Hadamtala, Rajkot 360 311 Gujarat. India.

Venue of AGM

Date of AGM

Day of AGM

Time of AGM

Remote E-Voting

th
28  September, 2021

Tuesday

12:00 p.m.

th th25  September, 2021 at 09:00 a.m. to 27  September, 2021 05:00 p.m.
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        RAJKOT   

 

 

 

 

         RIBDA  

 

                              RAJKOT GONDAL HIGHWAY         

 

 

       TOLL NAKA  

 

  TIRUPATI FORGE LIMITED  

Venue: Registered Office of the Company

Plot No. 1-5, Survey No. 92/1, Near Shan Cement, 

Hadamtala Industrial Area, Taluka: Kotda Sangani 

Hadamtala, Rajkot 360 311. Gujarat. India.

ROUTE MAP OF THE VENUE OF AGM
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Director’s 
Report 2020-21

Forge Limited



Director’s Report

To,

Members of Tirupati Forge Limited,

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Company, it gives me immense pleasure to present 
th

the 9  ANNUAL REPORT together with the Audited Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 

on March 31, 2021.

  FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE :

The standalone nancial statements of the Company for the nancial year ended March 31, 2021, have been 

prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) adopted for rst time as notied 

by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs and as amended from time to time.

Key highlights of nancial performance for the nancial year 2020-21 are provided below:

 
  

 

Sr. 

No.
Particulars F.Y. 2020-21 F.Y. 2019-20

1.

 

Revenue from Operations

 

3,076.92

 

2,761.37

2.

 

Other Income

 

20.35

 

35.57

3.

 

Total Revenue

 

3,097.27

 

2,796.95

4.

 

Cost of Materials Consumed

 

1,993.91

 

1,582.96

5.

 

Purchase of traded goods

 

16.57

 

13.14

6.

 
(Increase) in inventories of nished goods, work-in-progress 

and scrap

 -325.33

 

-46.05

7.
 

Employees Benet Expenses
 

215.04

 

208.17

8.
 

Finance Costs
 

37.30
 

51.79

9. Depreciation and Amortization Expenses 196.28
 

182.07

10. Other Expenses 909.10  767.66

11.
 

Total Expenses
 

3,042.86
 

2,759.74

12.

 
Prot Before Tax

 
54.40

 
37.21

 

Tax Expenses

  

 

Current Tax

 

13.70

 

8.55

 

Deferred Tax

 

1.32

 

1.15

13.

 

Total Tax Expenses

 

15.02

 

9.70

14.

 

Other Comprehensive Income

 

-

 

-

15.

 

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year attributable to 

equity holders
39.39

 

27.51

16. Earning Per Share 0.36 0.27

*The Highlights of the Performance is given as per Audit Report prepared with Ind-As standard adopted 

by the company during the year.

(Amount in Lakh)
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OPERATIONAL RESULTS AND STATE OF COMPANY'S AFFAIRS :

There has been no change in the nature of business of the company.

The Highlights of Company's performance for the year ended on March 31, 2021 (In lakh)

l In a volatile environment, Tirupati generated total Revenue from Operations of Rs. 3097.27/-  

against Rs.2796.94/- of previous F.Y 2019-20, which is 10.74%growas compare to the last nancial 

year.

l Total Expenses has increased from Rs. 2,759.74/- of previous nancial year to Rs. 3,042.86/- of the 

reporting nancial year.

l Prot before exceptional & extra-ordinary items and tax increased from Rs. /- of previous F.Y. 37.21

2019-20 to Rs. /- of the reporting nancial year.54.40

l Tirupati Records Net Prot of Rs. /- for the year registering notable growth against prot Rs. 39.39

27.51/- of previous F.Y. 2019-20

l Earnings per Share (EPS) for the F.Y. 2020-21 is Rs. 0.36/- as compared to Rs. 0.27/- of F.Y. 2019-20.

   FINANCIAL  PERFORMANCE  REVIEW AND ANALYSIS

The year was marked by profound disruption on account of COVID-19 pandemic and healthy rebound in 
the second half and regarded as one of the worst year after independence. During this time, we prioritized 
safety of our employees. We also went beyond to help the communities and society through 
collaborations, and direct support. As per the Second Advanced Estimates of National Income released by 
the CSO, real economic activity is expected to have contracted by 6.5% during the scal as the COVID-19 
pandemic took a toll on economic activity. This was the rst instance of a contraction since the Financial 
Year 1980. Nominal per capita income fell quite sharply during the year. The pandemic hit all segments of 
the economy quite hard with the manufacturing, construction and services segments reporting large 
contractions during the scal.

First quarter of the year was signicantly impacted by nationwide lockdowns imposed by government 
authorities. Apart from all this difcult situations, your directors are feeling blissful to share their 
experience of fruitful outcome in terms of Financial Performance of the Company. The management of the 
company succeed to bag some large orders couple of times by their tiredless and passionate working 
method regardless of situations. From the above, it can be seen that Company is succeed to record higher 
prot in this historic year as compared to last year, where some industry struggling to survive in this 
situation. Your directors have made this possible with the efforts of cost restructuring, effective service, 
product efciency thereby enabling the company to maintain protable growth in the current economic 
scenario.

Your Board of directors always strive to maximize the use of available resource to increase wealth of the 
shareholder of the company. For the year under review, for furtherance of business and to meet day-to-day 
operational activities, your Board of Directors has decided to plough back of prot and does not 
recommend any dividend for the F.Y. 2020-21. 

   CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS :

DECLARATION OF DIVIDEND :

33Tirupati Forge Limited  Annual Report 2020-21



INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND (IEPF) :

During the year under review, there were no instances incurred pursuant to which Company would 
require to transfer any amount to Investor Education anf Protection Fund. Hence no reporting under this is 
required.

TRANSFER TO RESERVE :

The Company has no Holding, Subsidiary and Associate Company.

HOLDING/SUBSIDIARY/ASSOCIATE :

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL
POSITION OF THE COMPANY, HAVING OCCURRED SINCE THE END OF THE YEAR AND
TILL THE DATE OF THE REPORT :

The Board of Directors of your company  has decided to keep the credit balance of prot and loss account 
to the suprlus account instead of appropriations to Reserve Account. You may refer notes to the nancial 
statements of the company.

The ongoing global COVID-19 pandemic took shaped their second wave, which has continuously cause 
signicant loss of life and has resulted in curtailment of economic activities across the world as local 
administrations and governments seek to limit spread of the disease, including through lockdown 
policies, restriction on business activities and business shutdowns. The Company is also carefully 
reviewing the demand and supply situation and re-calibrating its operations accordingly while protecting 
the interest of its customers, dealers and suppliers. The Board of Directors are optimistic that once the 
covid-19 impact gets over, the growth of forging sector will rebound further.

rdThe Board of Directors declared Interim Dividend at the meeting held on 03  August, 2021 of Rs. 0.10
[i.e 1%] per equity shares of Rs.10/- each of the company for the Financial Year 2021-22.

 Moreover, there are no material changes and commitments, affecting the nancial position of the 
Company, have occurred between the ends of nancial year of the Company i.e. March 31, 2020 to the date 
of this Report.

Authorised Capital & Paid Up Capital :

SHARE CAPITAL :

During the year under review, there was no change in the Authorised Share Capital of the company. At 

present Authorised capital of the company is Rs.11,50,00,000.

th
The Company allotted 5,50,000 equity shares on preferential basis to one of the warrant holder on 20  

August, 2020 pursuant to conversion of warrant into equity and allotted 3,30,000 equity shares being 

bonus shares reserved for warrant holders upon conversion in the ration of 6:10 at the time of bonus issue 

approved on September 20, 2019. Consequently, total 8,80,000 shares in aggregate were allotted. Further, 

paid up share capital of the company was increased from Rs.10,32,00,000 to Rs. 11,20,00,000 during the 

year under review.

Moreover, the Company has not come up with any Right issue, Issue of Employee Stock Options, Issue of 

Sweat Equity Shares, Issue of Debentures, issue of Bonds etc.

The details of warrants converted into Equity Shares are given under the heading Issue of Warrants.
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During the year under review, Credit rating is not applicable to the company.

CREDIT RATING :

ISSUE OF WARRANTS :

There was issue of 11,88,000  convertible warrants on Preferential basis to Non-promoters of the 
Company in previous nancial year on April 08, 2019. Further, details of conversion of Warrants during 
the year are as under: 

1. Date of allotment of warrants April 08, 2019

2 Number of warrants 5,50,000

4 Whether the issue of warrants was by 

way of preferential allotment, private 

placement, public issue

The warrants were issued by way of preferential 

allotment to Non-Promoters of the Company

4 Issue price Rs. 45

(Face value of Rs. 10 each and Premium of Rs. 35) 

5 Maturity date 09.10.2020 i.e. 18 months from the Date of Allotment  

6 Amount raised, specically stating as 

to whether 25% of the consideration 

has been collected upfront from the 

holders of the warrants

7 Terms and conditions of warrants 

including conversion terms.

8 No. of warrants converted into Equity 

Shares of the Company till the date of 

this report

3 Date of Conversion of warrants August 20, 2020

On rst  instance,  Company has col lected

Rs. 65,00,000 from the warrant holder which is more 

than 25% of the amount of the issue. Later on, the 

company has received balance subscription amount 

of Rs. 1,82,50,000/- from aforementioned warrant 

holder.

The warrants were issued with rights to convert into 

Equity Shares of the Company upon payment of 

remaining amount within 18 months from the date of 

allotment of the Warrants.

At the end of the period, total 11,88,000 Warrants in 

full were converted into 11,88,000 Equity Shares of 

the Company upon receipt of remaining amount 

from the respective warrant holders and reserved 

Bounus Equity Shares were also issued to Warrant 

holders upon conversion at their warrants into 

Equity Shares in the ratio of 6:10.

LISTING OF SECURITIES WITH STOCK EXCHANGE:

l Migration:

The Company has applied to the Exchange for migration of its securities to the main board of the Exchange. 

On a pleasing note, the security of the Company is migrated to Main Board of the Exchange for free trading 

w.e.f. August 04, 2020.

l Issue and Listed of Securities:

During the year under review, Issue and Listed capital of the Company has increased by 88,00,000 due to 

allotment of 8,80,000 equity shares pursuant to conversion of warrant into equity and bonus shares 

reserved for warrant holders upon conversion of warrants. Consequently, at presently the Listed capital of 

the Company is 11,20,00,000. For further details, you may refer under heading of warrants. 
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MANAGEMENT :

l DIRECTORS 

The Board comprised of 6 (Six) Directors with combination of executive and non executive directors, 

details of which are tabled below:

3.

2.

Mr. Anand Mohan Shrivastava 08684010

Ø  In accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013, Smt. Darshna H. Thummar (DIN: 
th07869257) shall liable to retire by rotation at the ensuing 9   Annual General Meeting of the Company 

and being eligible, offer herself for re-appointment. The Board hereby recommends her re-
appointment for approval of shareholders in the ensuing Annual general Meeting. pursuant to 
Regulation 36 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and 
Secretarial Standards-2, the detailed information of the director being appointed is provided as an 
Annexure-I.

Ø The Company has received declarations from all the directors and  with reference to that, there was no 

disqualication of any Director pursuant to Section 164 (2) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Ø The Company has received declarations from all the Independent Directors of the Company 

conrming that they meet with the criteria of the independence as laid down under section 149(6) of 

the Companies Act, 2013 and under Regulation 16(1)(b) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements)Regulations, 2015. In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, none 

of the Independent Directors is liable to retire by rotation They have complied with the Code for 

Independent Directors prescribed in Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013.

Ø In terms of Section 150 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 of the Companies (Appointment 

and Qualication of Directors) Rules, 2014, Independent Directors of the Company have conrmed 

that they have registered themselves with the databank maintained by The Indian Institute of 

Corporate Affairs, Manesar (“IICA”). The Independent Directors are also required to undertake online 

prociency self-assessment test conducted by the IICA within a period of 2 (two) years from the date of 

inclusion of their names in the data bank, unless they meet the criteria specied for exemption. All the 

independent director would be undertaking the said test in due course.

Ø In the opinion of Board, Independent Directors full the conditions specied in Companies Act, 2013 

read with schedules and rules thereto as well as SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Independent Directors are independent of management.

Whole Time Director
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Ø The Company has a Code of Conduct for the Directors and Senior Management Personnel. This Code 

is a comprehensive code applicable to all Directors and members of the Senior Management. A copy of 

the Code has been put on the Company's website www.Tirupatiforge.com

Ø The Code has been circulated to all the Members of the Board and Senior Management Personnel and  

they have afrmed compliance of the same.

3.

2.

Mr. Vivek M. Moliya

� KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 2 (51) and 203 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the 

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014. The following 

have been designated as the the Key Managerial Personnel of the company:

Company secretary and

compliance ofcer

Ø During the year under review, Ms. CS Jalpa N. Doshi (ICSI Membership No.: A54465) was resigned as 

a Company Secretary and Compliance Ofcer of the Company at with effect from September 30, 2020.

Ø Pursuant to the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board at its 

meeting held on September 30, 2020 approved appointment of Mr. Vivek M. Moliya (ICSI 

Membership No.: A62092) as Company Secretary and Compliance Ofcer of the Company with effect 

from October 01, 2020.

  MEETINGS OF THE BOARD: 

During the year under review, the Board of Directors met 12 times. The maximum interval between any 

two meetings did not exceed 120 days, as prescribed by the Companies Act, 2013. For details, please refer to 

the report on corporate governance, which forms part of this Annual Report in the form of Annexure-II.

l COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD:

The Committees of the Board focus on certain specic areas and make informed decisions in line with the 
delegated authority. The following Committees constituted by the Board function according to their 
respective roles and dened scope in terms of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 & SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations 2015 read with rules framed thereunder:

 Audit Committee

 Nomination and Remuneration Committee

 Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

 Stakeholders' Relationship Committee

 Complaints Committee for Sexual Harassment Complaints Redressal

Whole Time Director

- -

- -

l
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Details of composition, terms of reference and number of meetings held for respective committees are 

given in the Report on Corporate Governance, which forms a part of this Annual Report as Annexure-II. 

During the year under review, the Board has accepted all recommendations made by the various 

committees.

l MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:

In terms of requirements of Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013, The Independent Directors of your 

Company meet before the Board Meetings without the presence of the Executive Chairman or the 

Managing Director or other Non-Independent Director or Chief Financial Ofcer or any other 

Management Personnel. The Independent Directors of the Company met separately on March 06, 2021 to 

inter alia review the performance of Non-Independent Directors (including the Chairman), the entire 

Board and the quality, quantity and timeliness of the ow of information between the Management and 

the Board. All the Independent directors were attended the meeting.

l FAMILIARISATION PROGRAMME FOR INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS/NON-EXECUTIVE 

DIRECTORS:

All the Independent Directors of the Company are made aware of their roles and responsibilities at the 

time of their appointment through a formal letter of appointment, which also stipulates various terms and 

conditions of their engagement. Executive Directors and Senior Management provide an overview of the 

operations and familiarize the new Non-Executive Directors on matters related to the Company's values 

and commitments. The Directors are provided with all the documents to enable them to have a better 

understanding of the Company, its various operations and the industry in which it operates.

Pursuant to Regulation 25(7) of the Listing Regulations, the Company imparted various familiarization

programmes for its Directors including review of  Industry Outlook at the Board Meetings, Regulatory 

updates at Board and Audit Committee Meetings covering changes with respect to the Companies Act, 

2013, Listing Regulations, Taxation and other matters, Presentations on Internal Control over Financial 

Reporting, Operational Control over Financial Reporting, Prevention of Insider Trading Regulations, 

Framework for Related Party Transactions, Plant Visit, Meeting with Senior Executive(s) of your 

Company, etc. Pursuant to Regulation 46 of the Listing Regulations.

the details required are available on the website of your Company at  www.tirupatiforge.com

The Company has framed a Nomination and Remuneration Policy for selection and appointment of 

Directors including determining qualications and independence of a Director, Key Managerial 

Personnel (KMP), Senior Management Personnel and their remuneration as part of its charter and other 

matters provided under Section 178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Nomination and Remuneration Policy Policy has been placed on the website of the Company at
http://www.tirupatiforge.com/le/Nomination%20and%20Remuneration%20Committee_tirupati.pdf

We afrm that the remuneration paid to Directors, senior management and other employees is in 
accordance with the remuneration policy of the Company.

The Salient Features of the Policy are Described as per below :

a) Policy on Appointment of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management              

Personnel:

1. The policy is formulated to identify and ascertain the integrity, qualication, expertise  and
  experience of the person for appointment as Director, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior
 Management personnel and recommend to the Board for his / her appointment.

 POLICY ON DIRECTORS' APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION:

l
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2. A person should possess adequate qualication, expertise and experience for the position he/she is 

considered for appointment.

3. In case of appointment of Independent Director, the Committee shall satisfy itself with regard to the 

independent nature of the Director vis-à-vis the Company so as to enable the Board to discharge its 

function and duties effectively.

b)  Policy on remuneration of Directors, KMP and Senior Management Personnel:

 The Company's remuneration policy is driven by the success and performance of Directors, KMP 

and Senior Management Personnel vis-à-vis the Company. The Company's philosophy is to align 

them with adequate compensation so that the compensation is used as a strategic tool that helps us to 

attract, retain and motivate highly talented individuals who are committed to the core value of the 

Company. The Company follows mixed pay of xed, benets and performance based variable pay. 

The Company pays remuneration by way of salary, benets, perquisites and allowance. The 

remuneration paid by the Company are within the salary scale approved by the Board and 

Shareholders.

The details of remuneration paid during the nancial year 2020-21 to the Directors of the Company is 

provided in notes forming part of Financial Statements which is the part of this Annual Report.

    CODE FOR PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING:

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct to regulate, monitor and report trading by designated 
persons and their immediate relatives as per the requirements under the Securities and Exchange Board 
of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015. This Code of Conduct also includes code for 
practices and procedures for fair disclosure of unpublished price sensitive information, which has been 
available on the Company's website at 
https://www.tirupatiforge.com/le/Insider%20Trading%20Policy_Tirupati.pdf.

   POLICY ON BOARD DIVERSITY:

The Nomination and Remuneration committee has framed a policy for Board Diversity, which lays 
down the criteria for appointment of Directors on the Board of your Company and guides organization's 
approach to Board Diversity.

Your Company believes that, Board diversity basis the gender, race, age will help build diversity of 
thought and will set the tone at the top. It is, therefore, imperative that the Board consists of individuals 
who together offer an optimal mix of skills, experiences and backgrounds. The Board of Directors is 
responsible for review of the policy from time to time. Policy on Board Diversity has been placed on the 
Company's website at https://www.tirupatiforge.com/le/Board-Diversity-%20Policy.pdf.

    POLICY FOR DETERMINATION OF MATERIALITY OF ANY EVENT/ INFORMATION:

This policy requires the Company to make disclosure of events or information which are material to the 
Company as per the requirements of Regulation 30 of the Listing Regulations. Policy has been placed on 
the Company's website at https://www.tirupatiforge.com/le/Materiality%20Event_Tirupati.pdf.

   POLICY FOR DETERMINING MATERIAL SUBSIDIARIES:

The policy is used to identify material subsidiaries of the Company and to provide a governance 
framework for such material subsidiaries. Policy on determining Material Subsidiaries has been placed 
on the Company's website at https://www.tirupatiforge.com/le/material-subsidiaries.pdf

l
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   CODE OF CONDUCT:

The Board of your Company has laid down two separate Codes of Conduct, one for all the Board Members 
and the other for Employees of the Company. This Code is the central policy document, outlining the 
requirements that the employees working for and with the Company must comply with, regardless of 
their location. Policy on code of conduct  has been placed on the Company's website at   
https://www.tirupatiforge.com/le/Code%20of%20Conduct%20for%20Directors%20and%20Senior%
20 Management_Tirupati.pdf

   ARCHIVAL POLICY:

As per the policy, the events or information which has been disclosed by the Company to the Stock 
Exchanges pursuant to Regulation 30 of the Listing Regulations shall be hosted on the website of the 
Company for a period of 5 years from the date of hosting.

   ANNUAL EVALUATION OF DIRECTORS, BOARD AND COMMITTEE PERFORMANCE

In line with Corporate Governance of the company, the Board generally performs the major roles such as 
give directions in the form of strategic decisions, provide control and support through advice to the 
management of the company. It becomes imperative to evaluate the performance of the board as they are 
perform their duties on behalf of stakeholders and protection of their interest is supremacy of any 
organization.

Further, the Board always emphasis the requirements of an effective Board Evaluation process and 
accordingly conducts the Performance Evaluation every year in respect of the following:

i. Board of Directors as a whole.
ii. Committees of the Board of Directors.
iii. Individual Directors including the Chairman of the Board of Directors.

Board Evaluation helps to identify areas for potential adjustment and provides an opportunity to remind 
directors of the importance of group dynamics and effective board and committee processes in fullling 
board and committee responsibilities.
The Main object of performance evaluation dened as per the below:

1. Improving the performance of Board towards corporate goals and objectives.

2. Assessing the balance of skills, knowledge and experience on the Board.

3. Identifying the areas of concern and areas to be focused for improvement.

4. Identifying and creating awareness about the role of Directors individually and collectively as Board.

5. Building Teamwork among Board members.

6. Effective Coordination between Board and Management.

7. Overall growth of the organization.

Performance evaluation of the Board based on criteria such as composition and role of the Board, Board 

communication and relationships, functioning of Board Committees, review of performance of Executive 

Directors, succession planning, strategic planning, etc.

Performance evaluation of Committees based on criteria such as adequate independence of each 
Committee, frequency of meetings and time allocated for discussions at meetings, functioning of Board 
Committees and effectiveness of its advice/recommendation to the Board, etc.

The meeting of Independent Directors held separately to evaluate the performance of non-independent 
Directors, performance of the board as a whole and performance of the Chairman, taking into account the 
views of Executive Directors and Non-Executive Director. The same was discussed in the Board Meeting 
that followed the meeting of the independent directors, at which the performance of the Board, its 
Committee sand Individual Directors was also discussed. The entire board, excluding the independent 
director being evaluated, did performance evaluation of Independent Directors.
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pursuant to Section 134(3)(q) and Section 197 (12) of the Act read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 for the year ended March 31, 
2021 and forming part of the Directors' Report for the said financial year is provided in “Annexure –III”

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES :

  

The Company has no employee who is in receipt of remuneration of Rs. 8,50,000/- per month or Rs. 
1,02,00,000/- per annum and hence the Company is not required to give information under sub Rule (2) 
and (3) of Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014. 

   PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES :

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act 2013, the Board of Directors, to the best of 
their knowledge and ability, confirm that:

a. In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed and 
there were no material departures;

b. the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments 
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of 
the Company as at 31st March, 2021 and of the profit of the Company for that period;

c. the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records 
in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the company 
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d. the Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

 e. The Directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that such 
internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively.

f. The Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable 
laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY :

The Company has an Internal Control System including Internal Financial Controls, commensurate with 

the size, scale and complexity of its operations as approved by the Audit Committee and the Board. The 

Company maintains a system of internal controls designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding:

l  Effectiveness and efciency of operations.

l  Adequacy of safeguards for assets.

l  Reliability of nancial controls.

l  Compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

The Company recognizes that the Internal Financial Controls cannot provide absolute assurance of 

achieving nancial, operational and compliance reporting objectives because of its inherent limitations. In 

addition, projections of any evaluation of the Internal Financial Controls to future periods are subject to the 

risk that the Internal Financial Controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that 

the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

l
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Further, the Internal Financial Control framework is under constant supervision of Audit Committee, 

Board of Directors and Independent Statutory Auditors. During the year, no reportable material weakness 

in the design or operations was observed. The stakeholder may refer to the Audit report for comment on 

internal control system and their adequacy.

No fraud has been reported by the Auditors to the Audit Committee or the board as specied under 
Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013.

During the year under review, the Company has not accepted deposits within the meaning of Section 73 to 
76 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014. The 
stakeholders may refer notes to the financial statements and audit report part of this report.

FRAUDS REPORTED BY THE AUDITORS :

PUBLIC DEPOSITS :

PARTICULARS OF LOANS GIVEN, INVESTMENTS MADE, GUARANTEES GIVEN AND

SECURITIES PROVIDED

The Company have not given any loans, made investments, given guarantees, or provided securities, 
directly or indirectly, to any person or body corporate during the year under review pursuant to the 
provisions of Section 186 of Companies Act, 2013. Further, it has not acquired by way of subscription, 
purchase or otherwise, the securities of any other body corporate and thus disclosures under Section 186 
are not required to be made. The stakeholders may refer notes to the financial statements in this regard.

The Company has not advanced any loan to any of its Directors or any other person in whom the Director is 
interested or given any guarantee or provided any security in connection with any loan taken by him/her 
in terms of Section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013.

   PARTICULARS OF TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Ø Your board of directors informs that the Company has historically adopted the practice of undertaking 

related party transactions only in the ordinary and normal course of business and at arm's length as 

part of its philosophy of adhering to highest ethical standards, transparency and accountability.

Ø The Particulars of contracts, arrangements with related parties entered in ordinary course of business 

and on arm's length basis referred to in Section 188 (1) and applicable rules of the Companies Act, 2013 

in Form AOC-2 is  provided as Annexure-IV to this Board Report.

Ø In line with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulations, the Board has 

approved a policy on related party transactions. A policy on related party transactions has been placed 

 on the Company's website at http://www.tirupatiforge.com/le/Related%20Party%20Transaction 

Tirupati.pdf. Members are requested to refer to Note no. 32 & 33 to the nancial statement, which 

denes related party disclosures for the year under review.

Ø Pursuant to Regulation 23(9) of SEBI Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements] Rules, 2015, 

your Company has led the reports on related party transactions with the Stock Exchange [National 

Stock Exchange of India Limited].
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Your Company has constituted Internal Complaints Committee under the Sexual Harassment of Women 

at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and has a policy and framework for 

employees to report sexual harassment cases at workplace. for employee which is free of discrimination, 

further the Company conducts awareness programme at regular interval of time.

During the year under review, no complaints with allegations of sexual harassment were received as per 

the the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. 

The information pertaining to Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, Foreign Exchange 

Earnings and outgo as required under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of 

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are as stated below:

(A) Conservation of energy- 

Your Company is committed to sustainable business practices by contributing to environment 

protection and considers energy conservation as one of the strong pillars of preserving natural 

resources. This also helps in reducing carbon footprint across all its operations and improve the 

bottom-line under our 'Mission Sustainability'.

(I) The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy:- 

The Company applies strict control system to monitor day-to-day power consumption in an 

effort to save energy. The Company ensures optimal use of energy with minimum extent of 

wastage as far as possible.

 (ii) The steps taken by the company for utilizing alternate sources of energy;  

The Company has not taken any step for utilizing alternate source of energy.

(iii)  The capital investment on energy conservation equipment; 

During the year under review, the Company has not made any capital investment on energy 

conservation equipment.

(B) Technology absorption- 

Your Company is committed towards technology driven innovation and inculcating an 

innovation driven culture within the organisation. Your Company continued to work on 

advanced technologies, upgrade of existing technology and capability development in the 

critical areas for current and future growth.

(I)  The efforts made towards technology absorption; 

The Company has not made any special effort towards technology absorption. However, 

company is always prepared for update its factory for new technology.

(ii) The benets derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or import 

substitution: Not applicable  

(iii) In case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the 

beginning of the nancial year: Not applicable  

(iv)  The details of technology imported: Not applicable  

(v) The year of import: Not applicable  

(vi)  Whether the technology been fully absorbed:  Not applicable  

(vii)  If not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, and the reasons thereof: Not 

applicable  

(viii) The expenditure incurred on Research and Development- Not applicable

INFORMATION REQUIRED UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE

(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION & REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013:

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE

EARNINGS AND OUT GO
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Particulars 

Foreign Exchange Earnings (in Rs.) 

Foreign Exchange Outgo (in Rs.) 

 
F.Y. 2020-21

1778.37

35.05

 
F.Y. 2019-20 

1170.91

68.00

  

   RISK  MANAGEMENT

The Company is exposed to various potential risks like Economical Risk, Compliance Risk, Operational 
Risk, Environmental Risk and Financial Risk. The Company has in place a mechanism to identify, assess, 
monitor and mitigate various risks to key business objectives. Major risks identied by the businesses and 
functions are systematically addressed through mitigating actions on a continuing basis. If any 
weaknesses are identied in the process of review, the same are addressed to strengthen the internal 
controls, which are also revised at frequent intervals. 

The  Risk  Management  Pol icy  has  been placed on the  websi te  of  the  Company at 
http://www.tirupatiforge.com/le/Risk%20Management%20Policy_Tirupati.pdf

As per the provisions of Section 177(9) and (10) of the Companies Act, 2013, Regulation 22 of the Listing 

Regulations and Regulation 9A of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider 

Trading) Regulations, 2015, the Company has established a vigil mechanism through which employees 

and business associates may report unethical behaviour, wrong doing, malpractices, fraud, violation of 

Company's code of conduct, leak or suspected leak of unpublished price sensitive information without 

fear of reprisal. The Policy provides that the Company investigates such reported matters in an impartial 

manner and takes appropriate action to ensure that requisite standards of confidentiality, professional 

and ethical conduct are always upheld.

The policy on vigil mechanism of the company is also available on the website of the company 
https://www.tirupatiforge.com/file/Vigil%20Mechanism_Whistle%20Blower_Tirupati.pdf.

   DETAILS OF ESTABLISHMENT OF VIGIL MECHANISM FOR DIRECTORS & EMPLOYEES

   MATERIAL ORDERS OF JUDICIAL BODIES /REGULATORS

There were no signicant and material Orders passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals impacting 
the going concern status and Company's operations in future.

Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Act and Rule 12 of the Companies (Management and Administration) 
Rules, 2014, the Annual Return for FY 2020-21 is available on Company's website at 
www.tirupatiforge.com. 

   ANNUAL RETURN:

AUDITORS :

STATUTORY AUDITORS

Ø  Maharishi & Co., Chartered Accountants, [ICAI Firm Registration No. 124872W] , the Statutory 

Auditor of the Company, hold ofce until the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting of the 
Company to be held in the year 2022 as per the provisions of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 

2013.

(C.) Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo-
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Ø The requirement to place the matter relating to appointment of auditors for ratication by Members at 
every AGM has been done away by the Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017 with effect from May 7, 
2018. Accordingly, no resolution is being proposed for ratication of appointment of statutory 
auditors at the ensuing AGM.

Ø As required under SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the 
Auditors have also conrmed that they hold a valid certicate issued by the Peer Review Board of the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Ø Pursuant to Section 141 of the Act, the Auditors have represented that they are not disqualied and 
continue to be eligible to act as the Auditor of the Company. 

Ø The Statutory Auditors Maharishi & Co., Chartered Accountants, [ICAI Firm Registration No. 
124872W] have issued their reports on Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021. There 
are no adverse remarks or qualications in the said report. The Notes on Accounts referred to in the 
Auditors' Report are self-explanatory and do not call for any further comments. 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Act and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration 
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Board of Directors appointed Mr. CS Piyush Jethva [ICSI 
Membership No.: F6377] [Proprietor], Company Secretary in Practice to conduct the Secretarial Audit of 
the Company for year ended March 31, 2021. The Report of the Secretarial Audit is annexed herewith as 
Annexure-V. The said Secretarial Audit Report contain remarks that The Charge for the Credit facility of 
Vehicle is not registered.

The Board informs that charge has created on Staff bus dated 01.05.2017 However, due to some procedural 
lapse, The Company has not able to led the Form for the same. The Board ensures that the company 
regularly paying installments of the same. Moreover, there were no malaed intention to mislead any 
information to the stakeholders of the company and creation of this Charge is genuine and in furtherance 
of the business of the Company.    

SECRETARIAL COMPLIANCE REPORT

Pursuant to SEBI Circular no. CIR/CFD/CMD1/27/2019 dated February 8, 2019 read with Regulation 
24A of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, The Report allocable to the company for year ended March 31, 2021 due to migration of 
the Company from SME emerge platform to Main Board on August 4, 2020. the Board of Directors 
appointed CS Piyush Jethva [ICSI Membership No.: F6377], Company Secretary in Practice for the 
Secretarial Compliance Report of the Company for year ended March 31, 2021.The Secretarial Compliance 
Report of is annexed herewith as Annexure-V. The said Secretarial Audit Report does not contain any 
qualication, reservations, adverse remarks and disclaimer.

COST AUDIT

As per of Section 148 of Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under, Cost Audit is not applicable to 
the Company for F.Y. 2020-21. However, the Company has maintained the cost records in accordance with 
the rules made under the Act.

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS:

The Company has devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable 
Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India [“ICSI”] read with the MCA 
Circulars granting exemptions in view of the covid-19 pandemic and that such systems are adequate and 
operating effectively.

Management Discussion and Analysis Report for the nancial year under review, as stipulated under 
Regulation 34(2)(e) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations is presented in a separate section as Annexure-VI 
forming part of the Annual Report.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT:
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During the year, the equity shares of the Company has been listed and admitted to dealings on the 

Exchange [“Main Board”] (Capital Market Segment) w.e.f. August 04, 2020 pursuant to migration from 

SME Emerge Platform. 

Pursuant to Regulation 34 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, Report on Corporate Governance along with 

the certificate from a Practicing Company Secretary certifying compliance with conditions of Corporate 

Governance is part to this Report. The Report on the Corporate Governance is annexed herewith as 

Annexure -II.

   CORPORATE  GOVERNANCE :

Corporate Social Responsibility:

In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board has constituted a Corporate Social 

Responsibility (“CSR”) Committee. Details of composition and meetings of the committee along with 

terms of reference is part of corporate governance report as Annexure-II.

During the nancial year 2020-21, the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) expenditure incurred by the 

Company was Rs. 4,00,594/-. The annual report on CSR activities undertaken during the nancial year 

2020-21 is in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Companies (Corporate Social 

Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and is appended as Annexure-VII to this Report. During the year, the 

Company had successfully completed its CSR obligation.

BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY REPORT: 

During the year under Review, the Report on Business Responsibility is not applicable to the company.

GENERAL DISCLOSURE: 

1. Pursuant to SEBI circular No: CIR/CFD/FAC/62/2016 dated July 05, 2016, The Company has 

adopted Indian Accounting standard for the rst time and prepared accounts accordingly.

2. There is no revision in the Board Report or Financial Statement. 

APPRECIATION AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS:

The Directors likes to take this opportunity to thanks Shareholders, customers, vendors, dealers, suppliers, 

Bankers, government authorities for the support, encouragement and their condence in the management 

during the year.

The Directors also wish to convey their appreciation to all executives, ofcers and staff for their 

contribution towards performance of the Company. Their dedication and competence have ensured that 

the Company continues to be a signicant player in the forging industry.

By and on behalf of the board

TIRUPATI FORGE LIMITED  

Sd/-

Hiteshkumar G. Thummar           

Chairman & Managing Director             

[DIN: 02112952]     

August 26, 2021 

Hadamtala (Rajkot)
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Annexure-I

Information on Director recommended for appointment / reappointment as required under 

Regulation 36 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

Sr. 
No. Particulars Information 

01 Name of Director  

 02 07869257 

03 Category of Directorship Promoter Non Executive 

04 Date of Birth 29/12/1985 

05 Brief Resume of Director  Smt. Darshna Hiteshbhai Thummar is engaged with
the Company since 31st July, 2017. She is Graduate
from Saurashtra University. She is having work
Experience of more than 05 Years in the Forging
Industry. 

06 

07 

08 

09.  

10. 

Director
Number

Identication

Nature of his expertise in
specic functional areas

She is the engaged in strategic Management of our
Company and has been instrumental in handling
Human Resource Management of our Company.

Disclosure of relationships
between Directors inter-se

Shri. Hiteshkumar G. Thummar - Husband of
Smt. Darshana H. Thummar

Names of listed entities in
which the person also
hlolds the Directorship

Except Tirupati Forge Limited, she does not  hold
directorship in any Listed Company.

Chairman / Member of the
Committees of the Board
of Directors of the
Company. #

Membership in Committee - 2
Chairmanship in Committee - 0

Chairman / Member of
Committees of the Board

1.  Audit Committee
2.  Nomination and Remuneration Committee
3.  Stakeholder Relationship Committee
4.  Complaints Committee for Sexual Harassment

Complaints Redressal

Smt. Darshana Hiteshbhai Thummar

11.

No. of Shares held in the
Company as on 31st. March,
2021

Disclosure of Disqualication She is not disqualied from being appointed as a
Director

2,95,360 Shares12.

13. Terms and condition for
appointment / re-appointment

Non-Executive Director, liable to retire by rotation

14. NilRemunerations Last drawn

11Number of Board Meetings
attend during the year

15.

Not Applicable15. Justication for choosing
the independent Director

# Audit Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee have been considered.
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[Annexure-II]

Report on Corporate Governance for the year ended March 31, 2021

Ø This report is prepared in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V of the Securities 

and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 

(Listing Regulations) and the report contains the details of Corporate Governance systems and 

processes at Tirupati Forge Limited [”Hereinafter  called the company’’].

Ø The company developed belief that Corporate Governance is integral to the existence of the company. 

Corporate governance is all about compliance with all the moral & ethical values, legal framework and 

voluntarily adopted practices. We feel that corporate governance and ethics go hand in hand. For 

accomplishment of the objectives of ensuring fair Corporate Governance, the Government of India has 

put in place a framework based on the stipulations contained under the Companies Act, SEBI 

Regulations, Accounting Standards, Secretarial Standards, etc. Corporate Governance has become a 

buzzword in the corporate world. 

Quote:

“Corporate Governance is the application of best management practices, compliance of law in true 

letter and spirit and adherence to ethical standards for effective management and distribution of 

wealth and discharge of social responsibility for sustainable development of all stakeholders.”

Institute of Company Secretaries of India

COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF GOVERNANCE:

PUBLIC GOOD SHOULD BE AHEAD OF PRIVATE GOOD -

ANCIENT MANTRA OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

 
 

Ø Your company follows legacy of Kautilya's Arthashstra dscribes that for good governance, all 

administrators, including the king were considered servants of the people. Good governance and 

stability were completely linked. If rulers are responsive, accountable, removable, recallable, there is 

stability. If not there is instability. These tenets hold good even today. In modern era, we can substitute 

the state with the corporation, the king with the Managing Director or the board of a corporation, and 

the subjects with the shareholders, bring out the quintessence of corporate governance, because 

central to the concept of corporate governance is the belief that public good should be ahead of 

private good and that the corporation's resources cannot be used for personal benet.

 The Corporate Governance in your company based on the key four pillars:

Raksha
 literally means protection, in the corporate scenario it can be equated with the 

risk management aspect.  
 

Vriddhi 
literally means growth, in the present day context can be equated to stakeholder 
value enhancement.

Palana  literally means maintenance/compliance, in the present day context it can be 
equated to compliance to the law in letter and spirit.  
 

Yogakshema
 

literally means well being and in Kautilya’s Arthashastra it is used in context of a 
social security system. In the present day context it can be equated to corporate 
social responsibility.
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Ø Corporate Governance encompasses a set of systems and practices to ensure that the Company's 

affairs are being managed in a manner which ensures accountability, transparency and fairness in all 

transactions in the widest sense. The objective is to meet stakeholders' aspirations and societal 

expectations. There could be no stronger counsel relevant to modern day corporate governance 

structures for executive managements to heed the advice given by the non-executive independent 

colleagues on the board of directors. The Management of your company are committed to meet the 

aspirations of all our stakeholders and strives to justice with every single penny invested by 

stakeholders. The demands of Corporate Governance require professionals to raise their competence 

and capability levels to meet the expectations in managing the enterprise and its resources effectively 

with the highest standards of ethics.

Ø We adhere to ethical standards to ensure integrity, transparency, independence and accountability in 

dealing with all the stakeholders. Therefore, we have adopted various codes and policies to carry out 

our duties in an ethical manner. Some of these codes and policies are:

1. Code of Conduct for Senior Management.

2. Code of Conduct for Independent Directors

3. Policy on Insider Trading policy

4. Policy on Dividend Distribution Policy

5. Policy on Related Party Policy

6. Policy on Whistle Blower Policy

7. Policy on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy 

8. Policy on Material Subsidiaries etc.

Ø Your company has complied with all material respects in true letter and spirit with the features of 

Corporate Governance Code as prescribed in Regulation 17 to 27 of Securities and Exchange Board of 

India (SEBI) (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and some of the 

practices followed by the Company on Corporate Governance, for the nancial year ended March 31, 

2021.

(I) Composition:-

The Board of Directors is the apex body constituted by shareholders, for overseeing the Company's 
overall functioning. It provides strategic direction, leadership and guidance to the Company's 
management as also monitors the performance of the Company with the objective of creating long-
term value for the Company's stakeholders.

The Board has an appropriate mix of composition of Executive, Non-Executive and Independent 
Directors. The composition of the Board satises the requirements of Regulation 17 of the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”) read with 
Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013, (hereinafter referred to as “the Act”).

Pursuant to Regulation 27(2) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Company also submits a quarterly 

compliance report on Corporate Governance to the Indian Stock Exchanges, including details on all 

material transactions with related parties, if any within 15 days from the close of every quarter. The 

MD and the CFO have certied to the Board on inter alia, the accuracy of the nancial statements and 

adequacy of internal controls for nancial reporting, in accordance with Regulation 17(8) read 

together with Part B of Schedule II of the SEBI Listing Regulations, pertaining to CEO and CFO 

certication for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2021.

Board of Directors:
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The required information, including information as enumerated in Regulation 17(7) read together 
with Part A of Schedule II of the SEBI Listing Regulations is made available to the Board of Directors, 
for discussions and consideration at Board Meetings.

The Independent Directors on the Board are experienced and competent respective elds. The 

Independent Directors take active part at the Board and Committee Meetings which adds value in the 

decision-making process of the Board of Directors. The Independent Directors constitute half of the 

total strength of Board as on 31st March, 2021, the details are as under:

Category of Directors  No. of Directors  % of Total Directors  
Independent Directors  03  50.00  
Non Independent Non Executive Directors  01  16.67  
Executive Directors  02  33.33  
Total  06  100.00  

33%

50%

17%

COMPOSITION

Independent Directors Non Independent Non ExecutiveDirectors ExecutiveDirectors

Details of Composition and category of Directors, Number of Other Directorship, Chairmanship/ 
Membership of Committee of each directors :

Name of Directors
 

Category of
Directorship

 
No. of other
Directorship*
in Public Ltd

 
 

Board Committees**
 

 

 Member  Chairman  

HITESHKUMAR G. THUMMAR Chairman
Executive
Director

-

 

0  0  0  

BHAVESHBHAI T. BARASIYA Executive
Director 

0  0  0  

DARSHNA H. THUMMAR Non-
Executive
Director 

0  2  0  

RAMESH M. PATEL Independent
Director# 

0  2  1  

SACHIN P. RAVANI 
 

0  2  1  

ANAND M. SHRIVASTAVA
 

 

0
 

0
 

0
 

Independent
Director#

Independent
Director#
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Notes:

*Excludes Directorships in Private Limited Companies, Foreign Companies and Section 8 Companies.
**Only Audit Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee have been considered in terms of 
Regulation 26 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. (“Listing 
Regulations”). Membership includes Chairmanship.
# Mr. Ramesh Patel and Mr. Sachin Ravani Re-appointed for period of ve year w.e.f. 01.08.2019
# Mr. Anand Mohan Shrivastava appointed for period of ve years w.e.f. 14.02.2020

   Number of Board Meetings: 

The Board meets at least once in every quarter to review quarterly results and other items on the agenda. 
Additional meetings are held when necessary. During the year under review, total Twelve [12] Board 
meetings were held, as against the statutory requirement of four meetings. The details of Board meetings 
are given below:

Sr.
No.

 
Date of Board
Meeting

 
No. of Directors 
attended
Board Meeting 

 

01. 22/05/2020 5 07.  12/11/2020  6  

02.
 

15/06/2020 5 08.  21/11/2020  5  

03. 17/07/2020 4 09. 11/01/2021 6

04. 17/08/2020 6 10. 29/01/2021 5

05. 20/08/2020 4 11. 09/02/2021 6

06. 30/09/2020 5 12. 08/03/2021 6

Sr.
No.

Date of Board
Meeting

No. of Directors 
attended
Board Meeting

Sr.
No.

Date of
Meetings

 HITESH
KUMAR G.
THUMMAR

 
BHAVESHBHAI 
T. BARASIYA

 DARSHNA H.
THUMMAR

 RAMESH 
M. PATEL

 SACHIN P.
RAVANI

 ANAND M.
SHRIVASTAVA 

01. 22/05/2020
 

ü
  

ü
  

ü
  

ü
 

ü
  

02. 15/06/2020 ü ü ü ü ü

03. 17/07/2020
 

ü
  

ü
  

ü
   

ü
  

04. 17/08/2020 ü  ü  ü   ü  ü  ü   

05. 20/08/2020 ü  ü   ü   ü   

06. 30/09/2020 ü ü ü ü ü

07. 12/11/2020 ü ü ü ü ü ü

08. 21/11/2020 ü  ü  ü   ü ü

09. 11/01/2021
 

ü
  

ü
  

ü
  

ü ü ü

10. 29/01/2021
 

ü
  

ü
  

ü
  

ü
 

ü
  11. 09/02/2021

 
ü

  
ü

  
ü

  
ü

 
ü

 
ü

  12. 08/03/2021

 
ü

  
ü

  
ü

  
ü

 
ü

 
ü

  13 26/09/2020

 [AGM]
ü

  

ü

  

ü

  

ü

 

ü

   

Ø All Directors are in compliance with the limit on Directorships as prescribed under Regulation 17A of 

the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

Attendance of each Director at the Meeting of the Board of Directors and the last Annual General
Meeting
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Ø None of the Directors are related to each other except Shri Hiteshkumar G. Thummar and

  Smt. Darshna H. Thummar being Husband and Wife.

Ø None of Independent Directors resigned before the expiry of the term in the nancial year.

Ø Based on the declaration submitted by the Independent Directors of the Company provided at the 
beginning of the Financial Year 2021-22, the Board hereby certify that all the Independent Directors 
appointed by the Company fullls the conditions specied in these regulations and are independent of 
the management.

Ø None of the Directors on the Board:

-  is a member of more than 10 Board level committees and Chairman of 5 such committees across all the 
Public Companies in which he or she is a Director;

-  holds directorships in more than Seven Listed companies;

-  serves as Director or as Independent Directors (ID) in more than seven listed entities; and

-  who are the Executive Directors serves as IDs in more than three listed entities.

The Matrix setting out the skills, expertise and competencies of Directors as on 31st March 2021, in context 
of business of the Company is as under:

Sr.
No.

Name of
Directors

Behavioral
skills – Attributes
and
competencies
to use their
knowledge
and skills to
contribute
effectively to
the growth of
the Company

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Business
Strategy,
Sales &
Marketing,
Corporate
Governance,
Forex
Management,
Administration,
Decision Making,

 
 

 
 
 

 

Financial and
Management
skills

 
 

Technical /
Professional
skills and
specialized
knowledge
in relation to
Company’s
business

 
 
 
 

 
 

Environment, 
Health and Safety
and Sustainability
Knowledge of 
working on
environment, 
health and safety 
and sustainability
activities.

-

 

01. HITESHKUMAR 
G. THUMMAR

ü
  

ü
  

ü
  

ü
  

ü
  

ü
  

02. BHAVESHBHAI 
T. BARASIYA

ü
  

ü
  

ü
  

ü
    

ü
  

03. DARSHNA H.
THUMMAR

 
ü

  
ü

  
ü

     
04. RAMESH M.

PATEL

 

ü

  

ü

 

ü

  

ü

    

ü

  
05. SACHIN P.

RAVANI

 

ü

  

ü

    

ü

    

ü

  06. ANAND M.
SHRIVASTAVA

ü ü ü ü

Knowledge
On Company’s
businesses,
policies and
culture
(including
the Mission,
Vision and
Values) major 
risks / threats 
and potential
opportunities, 
the industry in 
which the
Company
operates and
advising on
domestic 
market and
overseas
market.

Shareholding of Non-Executive Directors:

The number of Equity Shares of the Company held by Non- Executive Directors of the Company are as 
under:

Name of director  No. of Equity Shares Held  

Smt. Darshna Hiteshkumar Thummar  2,95,360  

Matrix of Core Skills/ Expertise/ Competencies of Directors in context of business of the Company:
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   The Board of Directors, in line with the provisions of the Act, has formed following Committees:

Audit Committee

The Company has formed audit committee in line with the provisions Section 177 of the Companies Act, 
2013 and Regulation 18 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 
Audit Committee meeting is generally held for recommending the Quarterly nancial result and for 
approval of related Party Transactions, if any. The Board has accepted recommendations of Audit 
Committee, wherever/whenever given. The Chief Financial Ofcer of the Company is a regular invitee 
at the Meeting.

Terms of Reference:

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are as per the governing provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013 (section 177) and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
(specied in Part C of Schedule II).

The Role of the Audit Committee includes the following:

(1) oversight of the listed entity's nancial reporting process and the disclosure of its nancial 

information to ensure that the nancial statement is correct, sufcient and credible;

(2) recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the listed 

entity;

(3) approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory auditors;

(4) reviewing, with the management, the annual nancial statements and auditor's report thereon 
before submission to the board for approval, with particular reference to:

(a) matters required to be included in the director's responsibility statement to be included in the board's 

report in terms of clause (c) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013;

(b) changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same;

(c) major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by management; 

(d) signicant adjustments made in the nancial statements arising out of audit ndings;

(e) compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to nancial statements;

(f) disclosure of any related party transactions;

(g) modied opinion(s) in the draft audit report;

(h) reviewing, with the management, the quarterly nancial statements before submission to the board 

for approval;
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(5) reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised through an 

issue (public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes 

other than those stated in the offer document / prospectus / notice and the report submitted by the 

monitoring agency monitoring the utilisation of proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making 

appropriate recommendations to the board to take up steps in this matter;

(6) reviewing and monitoring the auditor's independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit 

process;

(7) approval or any subsequent modication of transactions of the listed entity with related parties;

(8) scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

(9) valuation of undertakings or assets of the listed entity, wherever it is necessary;

(10) evaluation of internal nancial controls and risk management systems;

(11) reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the 

internal control systems;

(12) reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal 

audit department, stafng and seniority of the ofcial heading the department, reporting structure 

coverage and frequency of internal audit;

(13) discussion with internal auditors of any signicant ndings and follow up there on;

(14) reviewing the ndings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where 

there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature 

and reporting the matter to the board;

(15) discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of 

audit as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern;

(16) to look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture 

holders, shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors;

(17) to review the functioning of the whistle blower mechanism;

(18)approval of appointment of chief nancial ofcer after assessing the qualications, experience 

and background, etc. of the candidate;

(19) Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the audit committee.

(20) reviewing the utilization of loans and/ or advances from/investment by the holding company in 

the subsidiary exceeding rupees 100 crore or 10% of the asset size of the subsidiary, whichever is 

lower including existing loans / advances / investments existing as on the date of coming into 

force of this provision.

(21) consider and comment on rationale, cost-benets and impact of schemes involving merger, 

demerger, amalgamation etc., on the listed entity and its shareholders.
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(b)   The audit committee shall mandatorily review the following information:

(1) management discussion and analysis of nancial condition and results of operations;

(2) statement of signicant related party transactions (as dened by the audit committee), submitted 

by management;

(3) management letters / letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors;

(4) internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses; and

(5) the appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the chief internal auditor shall be subject to 

review by the audit committee.

(6) statement of deviations:

(a) quarterly statement of deviation(s) including report of monitoring agency, if applicable, submitted 

to stock exchange(s) in terms of Regulation 32(1).

(b) annual statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer 
document/prospectus/notice in terms of Regulation 32(7).

The other details with respect to committee composition and meetings are as follow:

(ii) COMPOSITION OF THE COMMITTEE

Sr. No.  Designation  Category  
01   
02   
03    

Name of Director

Mr. Ramesh M. Patel

Mrs. Darshna H. Thummar

Mr. Sachin P. Ravani

Chairman

Member

Member

Independent Director

Non Executive Director

Independent Director

All these Directors possess knowledge of corporate nance, accounts and corporate laws. The 
Statutory Auditors, Cost Auditors, Secretarial Auditor, Internal Auditors and Senior Executives of the 
Company are invited to attend the meetings of the Committee, whenever necessary. The Company 
Secretary acts as the Secretary of the Committee.

(ii) Meetings and Attendance:

During the nancial year ended the 31st March, 2021, Five meetings were held under provisions of 
nd th thCompanies Act, 2013 on 22  May, 2020, 15 June, 2020, 17  August, 2020, 12th November, 2020 and 9th 

February, 2021. The attendance at the above Meetings was as under:

ü

Sr. No.  22-05-2020

01   
02   
03    

Name of Director

Mr. Ramesh M. Patel

Mrs. Darshna H. Thummar

Mr. Sachin P. Ravani
ü
ü

ü

15-06-2020

 

  

 
ü
ü

ü

17-08-2020

 

  

 
ü
ü

ü

12-11-2020

 

  

 
ü
ü

ü

09-02-2021

 

  

 
ü
ü

   Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Company has formed Nomination and Remuneration committee in line with the provisions of 

Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015. Nomination and Remuneration Committee Meetings are generally 

held responsible for identifying the persons who are qualied to become Directors, their remuneration 

and appointment of personnel at senior level management and their removal.
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The terms of reference of the Committee as per the Nomination and Remuneration Policy of the 
Company inter-alia includes the following:

a) reviewing the structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience) of 
the Board at least annually and making recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to 
complement the Company's corporate strategy, with the objective to diversify the Board;

a) to recommend to the Board the appointment and removal of Director or KMP or Senior 

Management Personnel;

b) to carry out evaluation of Director's performance;

c) assessing the independence of Independent Directors;

d) to make recommendations to the Board concerning any matters relating to the continuation in 

ofce of any Director at any time including the suspension or termination of service of an Executive 

Director as an employee of the Company subject to the provision of the law and their service 

contract;

f ) making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration/fee payable to the Directors/  KMPs/ 
Senior Ofcials so appointed/reappointed and remuneration, in whatever form, payable to senior 
management;

g) ensure that level and composition of remuneration of Directors, KMP's and Senior Management is 

reasonable and sufcient. The relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets 

appropriate performance benchmarks;

h) to devise a policy on Board's diversity;

I) to develop a succession plan for the Board and Senior Management and to regularly review the 

plan;

j) Specify the manner of effective evaluation of performance of Board, its Committees and Individual 

Directors to be carried out either by Board, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee or by 

independent external agency and review its implementation and compliance;

k) such other key issues/ matters as may be referred by the Board or as may be necessary in view of 

the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and provision of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and Rules thereunder.

The other details with respect to committee composition and meetings are as follow:

Sr. No.  Designation  Category  
01   
02   
03    

Name of Director

Mrs. Darshna H. Thummar

Chairman

Member

Member

Independent Director

Non Executive Director

Independent Director

The Company Secretary acts as Secretary of the Committee.

Mr. Ramesh M. Patel

Mr. Sachin P. Ravani
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(iii) Meetings and Attendance:

During the nancial year ended the 31st March, 2021, Four meetings were held under provisions of 
th th

Companies Act, 2013 on 15  June, 2020, 17th August, 2020, 30  September, 2020 and 9th February, 
2021. The attendance at the above Meetings was as under:

Sr. No.  
01   
02   
03    

Name of Director

Mr. Ramesh M. Patel

Mrs. Darshna H. Thummar

ü

15-06-2020

 

  

 
ü
ü

ü

17-08-2020

 

  

 
ü
ü

ü

30-09-2020

 

  

 
ü
ü

ü

09-02-2021

 

  

 
ü
ü

a. Stakeholders' Relationship Committee

The Company has constituted Stakeholder's Relationship Committee in compliance with the 
requirements of Section 178 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 20 of the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

Broad Terms of Reference: 

(1) Resolving the grievances of the security holders including complaints related to 

transfer/transmission of shares, non-receipt of Annual Report, non-receipt of declared dividends, 

issue of new/duplicate certicates, general meetings etc.

(2) Review of measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders.

(3) Review of adherence to the service standards adopted by the Company in respect of various 

services being rendered by the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent.

(4) Review of the various measures and initiatives taken for reducing the quantum of unclaimed 
dividends and ensuring timely receipt of dividend warrants, annual reports, statutory notices by 
the shareholders of the Company.

The other details with respect to committee composition and meetings are given as follows.

Sr. No.  Designation  Category  
01   
02   
03    

Name of Director

Mrs. Darshna H. Thummar

Chairman

Member

Member

Independent Director

Non Executive Director

Independent Director

The Company Secretary acts as Secretary of the Committee.

Name and Designation of compliance ofcer:

Mr. Vivek manishbhai Moliya- Company secretary is the compliance ofcer of the company w.e.f. 
01.10.2020. 

Ms. Jalpa Doshi-Company secretary was compliance ofcer of the company upto 30.09.2020.

Particulars Figures  

Number of shareholders’ complaints received during the nancial year  0  
Number of complaints not solved to the satisfaction of shareholders  0  
Number of pending complaints 0  

Mr. Sachin P. Ravani

Mr. Ramesh M. Patel

Mr. Sachin P. Ravani
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(iv) Meetings and Attendance:

During the nancial year ended the 31st March, 2021, one meetings was held under provisions of 
Companies Act, 2013 on 9th February, 2021. The attendance at the above Meetings was as under:

Sr.
No.  

Name of Director  09/02/2021

01.  Mr. Sachin P. Ravani  ü  

02.  Mrs. Darshna H. Thummar  ü  

03.  Mr. Ramesh M. Patel  ü  

b. Complaints Committee for Sexual Harassment Complaints Redressal

The Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at workplace and to foster a positive 
workplace environment, free from harassment of any nature, we have constituted a Complaints 
Committee for Sexual Harassment Complaints Redressal, through which we address complaints 
of sexual harassment at the all workplaces of the Company. The Complaints Committee is 
responsible for investigating every formal written complaint of sexual harassment, taking 
appropriate remedial measures to respond to any substantiated allegations of sexual harassment 
and Discouraging & preventing employment - related sexual harassment. In conclusion, the 
Company reiterates its commitment of providing its employees, a workplace free from harassment 
/ discrimination and where every employee is treated with dignity and respect.

The other details with respect to committee composition are as follows

Sr. No.  Designation  Category  
01   
02   
03    

Name of Director

Mr. Hiteshkumar G. Thummar

Mrs. Darshna H. Thummar

Mr. Bhavesh T. Barsiya

Chairman

Member

Member

Non Executive Director

Managing Director

Whole-Time Director

During the year under review, there were no incidences of sexual harassment reported and therefore 
no committee meeting held during the year.

c. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee:

Pursuant to Section 135 of the Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017, every Company having Net worth 
of Rs. 500 Crore or more OR Turnover of Rs. 1000 Crore or more OR Net Prot of Rs. 5 Crore or more 
during the immediately preceding nancial year shall constitute Corporate Social Responsibility 
(CSR). 

In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, to formulate and recommend to the 
Board, a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy indicating the activities to be undertaken by the 
Company as specied in Schedule VII to the Act, to recommend the amount of expenditur to be 
incurred on such activities, action plan and to monitor the Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of the 
Company from time to time. The policy is available on the website of the Company; Details of the 
Corporate social responsibility is given under separate section as annxure-VII and form part of this 
annual report.

Broad Terms of Reference:

a) Formulate and recommend to the Board, a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy which shall 

indicate the activities to be undertaken by the Company as specied in Schedule VII of the 

Companies Act, 2013;
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b) Recommend and monitor the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the activities referred to in 
clause (a),

c) Monitor the Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of the Company from time to time; and

d) Any other functions as may deem t by the CSR Committee/Board or as may be necessitated  by 
any regulatory framework as amend from time to time.

Sr. No.  Designation  Category  
01   
02   
03    

Name of Director

Mr. Bhavesh T. Barsiya

Mr. Sachin P. Ravani

Chairman

Member

Member

Managing Director

Indipendent Director

Whole-Time Director

Mr. Hiteshkumar G. Thummar

(v) Meetings and Attendance:

During the nancial year ended the 31st March, 2021, Two [2] meetings were held under provisions 
th thof Companies Act, 2013 on 17  July, 2020, 11 January, 2021.

 The attendance at the above Meetings was as under:

Sr.
No.  

Name of Director  17/07/2020

01.   ü   

02.   ü   

03.   ü   

11/01/2021

ü

ü

ü

 F. Risk management Committee:

As per SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, composition of 

Risk management Committee shall be applicable to top 1000 listed entities, determined on the basis 

of market capitalization, as at the end of immediate previous nancial year. The company does not 

come under the purview of the above regulation and accordingly does not constituted committee. 

Independent Directors' Meeting:

Ø As stipulated by the Code of Independent Directors under the Companies Act, 2013 and also as per 

the Regulation 25 of Listing Regulations, a separate meeting of the Independent Directors of the 

Company was held on 6th March, 2021 to review the performance of Non independent Directors 

(including the Chairman, Managing Director & CEO) and the Board as whole. The Independent 

Directors also reviewed the quality, content and timeliness of the ow of information between the 

Management and the Board & it’s Committees which is necessary to effectively and reasonably 

perform and discharge their duties. 

Ø Further, In terms of Section 150 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Qualication of Directors) Rules, 2014, Independent Directors of the Company 

have conrmed that they have registered themselves with the databank maintained by The Indian 

Institute of Corporate Affairs, Manesar (“IICA”). The Independent Directors are also required to 

undertake online prociency self-assessment test conducted by the IICA within a period of 2 (two) 

years from the date of inclusion of their names in the data bank, unless they meet the criteria 

specied for exemption. All the independent director would be undertaking the said test in due 

course.

Mr. Bhavesh T. Barsiya

Mr. Sachin P. Ravani

Mr. Hiteshkumar G. Thummar
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Performance Evaluation Criteria of Independent Directors:

Pursuant to Regulation 17 of the Listing Regulations, evaluation of Independent Directors was carried 

out by the entire Board. Only the Independent Director being evaluated did not participate in the said 

evaluation discussion. All Independent Directors fullls the independence criteria and are 

independent of management. 

The Evaluation criteria for Independent Directors forms part of the Nomination and Remuneration 

Policy of the Company which is annexed in the Board's Report.

Familiarisation Programme:

Pursuant to the Code of Conduct for Independent Directors specied under the Act and the SEBI 

Listing Regulations, the Company has in place a familiarization programme for all its Independent 

Directors. Such familiarization programmes help the Independent Directors to understand the 

Company's strategy, business model, operations, markets, organization structure, risk management 

etc. and such other areas as may arise from time to time. The Familiarization Programmes imparted to 

Independent Directors of the Company has been disclosed on its website at www.tirupatiforge.com

Remuneration of Directors: 

(I) Details of Remuneration paid to the Directors for the nancial year ended 31st March, 2021. 

Name of Directors Salary Benets Commission Bonuses Stock 

Option 
 Sitting 

Fees
 Total

HITESHKUMAR G.
THUMMAR 15,00,000

 
- -

 
-

 
-

 
-

 

BHAVESHBHAI T.
BARASIYA 

6,00,000 - - -  -  -  

DARSHNA H. THUMMAR - - - -  -  -  -  

RAMESH M. PATEL - - - -  -  -  -  

SACHIN P. RAVANI -
 

- -
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

ANAND M.
SHRIVASTAVA

-
 

- -
 

-
 

-
 

- -
 

The Company has not paid any sitting fees for attending the meeting of the Board/Committees to the 

Non-Executive Directors including Independent Directors of the Company.

The appointment of Executive Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees is by virtue 

of their employment with the Company therefore, their terms of employment vis-a-vis salary, variable 

pay, service contract, notice period and severance fee, if any, are governed by the applicable policies at 

the relevant point in time.

ii) Criteria of making payments to Non-Executive/ Independent Director(s):

The criteria of making payments to Non-Executive Director/Independent Director(s) is appearing 

on the website of the Company and the web link of the same is as under:

https://www.tirupatiforge.com/le/Nomination%20and%20Remuneration%20Committee_tiru

pati.pdf

15,00,000

 6,00,000
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iii) Pecuniary Transactions:

There are no pecuniary relationships or transactions of Non-Executive Directors vis-a-vis the 

Company that have a potential conict with the interests of the Company.

 General Body Meetings:

The last three Annual General Meetings were held as per detail below:

Date of AGM
 

Relevant 

Financial 

Year
 

Venue/Locations 

where held
 

Time of Meeting Whether any 

special resolution 

was passed
 

14 th  September, 2018 2017 -18 Registered Ofce 11 A.M.  No  

20 th
 September, 2019 2018 -19 Registered Ofce 11 A.M.  Yes

26 th

 
September, 2020

 
2019 -20

 
Registered Ofce

 
04 P.M.

 
No

 

Postal ballot: 

(I) The Company has issued Postal Ballot Notice dated 22nd May, 2020, in compliance with Section 

110 read with Section 108 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the 

Act”) read with Rule 20 and Rule 22 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 

2014 (“the Rules”) also read with General Circulars No. 14/2020 dated April 8, 2020, No. 17/2020 

dated April 13, 2020, No. 22/2020 dated June 15, 2020, No. 33/2020 dated September 28, 2020 and 

No. 39/2020 dated December 31, 2020 issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA Circulars”), 

Regulation 44 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”) including any statutory 

modication or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force, Secretarial Standard -2 issued by 

the Institute of Company Secretaries of India and any other applicable laws and regulations to 

transact the below mentioned special businesses by the Members of Tirupati Forge Limited (“the 

Company”) through Postal Ballot by remote e-voting process (e-voting) only:

a) Re-appointment of Mr. Ramesh Patel (DIN: 02738359) as an Independent Director of the 

Company

b) Re-appointment of Mr. Sachin Ravani (DIN: 07874835) as an Independent Director of the 

Company.

c) Appointment of Mr. Anand Mohan Shrivastava (DIN: 08684010) as an Independent Director of 

the Company.

d) Revision in Remuneration of Mr. Hiteshkumar G. Thummar (DIN: 02112952), Managing 

Director of the Company.

e) Appointment of Mr. Bhavesh Barasiya (DIN: 05332180) as Whole Time Director and Approval 

of Remuneration under section 196 and 197 Read with Schedule V.

II. Voting rights will be reckoned on the paid-up value of shares registered in the name of the 

Members on Friday, the May 22, 2020 (the Cut-off date).

III. Facility for voting through Postal Ballot and electronic means was available during the 

following   period-

62 Tirupati Forge Limited  Annual Report 2020-21



a. commencement of voting from Saturday, May 30, 2020 at 9.00 A.M. (IST); and

b. ended on Sunday, June 28, 2020 at 5.00 P.M. (1ST) (both days inclusive).

(iv) The Company had appointed Mr. Piyush Jethva, a Practicing Company Secretary (Certicate 

of Practice No. 5452 & Membership No. FCS 6377) as the Scrutinizer to conduct the Postal Ballot 

only through remote e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner.

(v) The Results of the Postal Ballot was declared on June 29, 2020 and resolutions were passed by 

requisite majority, deemed to be passed on the 28th  June, 2020 i.e. last date specied by the 

Company for remote e-voting, i.e. Sunday, June 28, 2020.

(vi) Consolidated summary of results of Postal Ballot is as under:

Item No.1 : Re-appointment of Mr. Ramesh Patel (DIN: 02738359) as an Independent Director of 

the Company.

Type of resolution: Special Resolution

Method of voting No. of shares held Voted in favour of 
Resolution

 Voted against the 
resolution

 Percentage of total 
favorable votes 
cast (Valid)

 

Remote E-voting 8245120 8245120 NIL 100

 

Total 8245120 8245120 NIL 100  

Item No.2 : Re-appointment of Mr. Sachin Ravani (DlN: 07874835) as an Independent Director of 

the Company. “Public”category.

Type of resolution: Special Resolution

Method of voting No. of shares held Voted in favour of 
Resolution

 Voted against the 
resolution

 Percentage of total 
favorable votes 
cast (Valid)

 

Remote E-voting 8245120 8245120 NIL 100

 

Total 8245120 8245120 NIL 100  

Item No.3 : Appointment of Mr. Anand Mohan Shrivastava (DlN: 08684010) as an Independent 

Director of the Company.

Type of resolution: Ordinary Resolution

Method of voting No. of shares held Voted in favour of 
Resolution

 Voted against the 
resolution

 Percentage of total 
favorable votes 
cast (Valid)

 

Remote E-voting 8245120 8245120 NIL 100

 

Total 8245120 8245120 NIL 100  

Item No.4 : Revision in Remuneration of Mr. Hiteshkumar G. Thummar (DlN: 02112952),    

Managing Director of the Company.

Type of resolution: Special Resolution
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Method of voting No. of shares held Voted in favour of 
Resolution

 Voted against the 
resolution

 Percentage of total 
favorable votes 
cast (Valid)

 

Remote E-voting 8245120 8245120 NIL 100

 

Total 8245120 8245120 NIL 100  

Item No.5 : Appointment of Mr. Bhavesh Barasiya (DlN: 05332180) as Whole Time Director and 

Approval of Remuneration under section 196 and 197 Read with Schedule V.

Type of resolution: Special Resolution

Method of voting No. of shares held Voted in favour of 
Resolution

 Voted against the 
resolution

 Percentage of total 
favorable votes 
cast (Valid)

 

Remote E-voting 8245120 8245120 NIL 100

 

Total 8245120 8245120 NIL 100  

(vii) No special resolution requiring postal ballot is being proposed for the ensuing Annual General 

Meeting.

Means of Communication:

1. Quarterly Results:

The Company publishes limited reviewed un-audited standalone nancial results on a quarterly 

basis. In respect of the fourth quarter, the Company publishes the audited standalone nancial 

results for the complete nancial year.

2.  Newspapers wherein results normally published:

Normally, the quarterly and Annual Financial Results are published in Financial Express [Gujarati 

version] and The Indian Express [English version]

These results are displayed on the website of the Company. All other vital information is also 

placed on the website of the Company. 

3.  Website, where displayed:

All price sensitive information and matters that are material to shareholders are disclosed to the 

respective Stock Exchanges where the securities of the Company are listed. The Quarterly Results, 

Shareholding Pattern and all other corporate communication to the Stock Exchanges are led 

through NSE Electronic Application Processing System (NEAPS). The stock exchange lings are 

also made available on the website of the Company at www.tirupatiforge.com.

4.  Ofcial news releases:

The Company publishes an information of ofcial news release, if any on the website of the 

Company.

5.  Presentations made to institutional investors or to the analysts:

During the year under review, The Company has not meet with institutional investor or made 

presentation to the investor of the company.
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General Shareholders' Information:

Annual General Meeting (AGM) 

Date, Time & Venue

thTuesday, 28  September, 2021 at Registered Ofce situated at

Plot No. 1-5; Survey No. 92/1,
Near Shan Cement,
Hadamtala Industrial Area,
Taluka: Kotda Sangani,
Hadamtala 360311,
Dist: Rajkot (Gujarat) India.

  
 

 
 

 

Financial Year

 

1st

 

April, 2020 to 31st

 

March, 2021

 

Date of Book Closure

 

st thTuesday, 21  September, 2021 to Tuesday, 28  September, 2021

  

, 
 

Dividend payment date:

 

The Board has not Recommended any dividend for the year.

 

Listing of Shares on Stock 

Exchanges

 National Stock Exchange of India Limited
NSE – Corporate Ofce
Exchange Plaza, C - 1, Block G,
Bandra Kurla Complex,
Bandra (E), Mumbai – 400 051
Phones: (022) 26598100 – 8114
Fax No: (022) 26598120

  
 

 
  

  
 

Payment of Listing Fees
 

Annual Listing fees as applicable have been duly paid.
 

Stock Code / ISIN
 

Code: TIRUPATIFL
ISIN: INE319Y01019

 

 

Whether S&P BSE 500 Index
 

No
 

in case the securities are 
suspended from trading, the 
directors report shall explain the 
reason thereof 

N.A. 

Share Transfer System: SEBI had mandated that, effective from 1st April 2019, securities 
of listed companies can only be transferred in dematerialized 
form except where the claim is lodged for transmission or
transposition of shares or where the transfer deed(s) was/were 
lodged prior to 1st April 2019 and returned due to deciency in 
the documents. Shares received in physical form for transfer 
are attended and transferred within the stipulated period from 
the date of lodgment subject to documents being valid and 
complete in all the respects.

 

 

 During the year, the Company had obtained, on half-yearly 
basis, a certicate, from a Company Secretary in practice, as 
required under Regulation 40(9) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015 and led copy of 
the same with the Stock Exchanges. 

 
Outstanding GDRs/A
DRs/warrants or any
Convertible instruments, 

There are no such instruments issued upto 31st March, 2021.

 

Credit Rating Not Applicable
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(I) Market Price Data: Monthly High-Low values (in B) at NSE

Month High  Low

April
 

28.50 27.80

May
 

29.10 28.35

June

 

29.85 27.25

July

 

28.10 24.40

August

 

38.35 24.80

September 31.00 21.75

October 30.85 20.65
 

November 29.40 24.20

December 27.10 24.00

January 29.25 21.25

February 27.15 20.25

March 27.25 24.55

Month High  Low
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i) Distribution of shareholding as on 31st March, 2021: 
 

No. of Equity 

Shares held 

No. of

Shareholders 

% of

Shareholders 

No. of shares

held 

% of

Shareholding 

1-500 365 77.6596 16,469 0.15 

501-1000 9 1.9149 6,086 0.05 

1001-2000 3 0.6383 4,596 0.04 

2001-3000 1 0.2128 2,500 0.02 

3001-4000 11 2.3404 35,922 0.32 

5001-10000 40 8.5106 2,52,708 2.26 

10001& Above 41 8.7234 1,08,81,719 97.16 

Total 470 100.00 1,12,00,000 100.00 
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m)  Category of Shareholders as on 31st March, 2021: 

Dematerialization of shares and liquidity: 

Particulars 

 

Promoters and Promoter Group

Bodies Corporate

Individual

Clearing Members

Non-Resident Individual

Hindu Undivided Family [HUF]

Bodies Corporate 8,06,813 7.20 

Individual 36,68,958 32.76 

Others: 

Clearing Members 55,112 0.49 

Non-Resident Individual 9,700 0.09 

Hindu Undivided Family [HUF] 1,59,737 1.43 

Total 1,12,00,000 100.00 

No. of shares held % of Shareholding 

64,99,680 58.03 Promoter Group 

Category 

Promoters and 

All the shares of the Company are in demat segment and are available for trading in the depository 

systems of both the National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services 

(India) Limited (CDSL). The status of shares held in demat format is given below.

As on 31st March, 2021 As on 31st March, 2020

D-mat

NSDL

CDSL

TOTAL

Number of shares Percentage

28,39,275 25.35 %

83,60,725 74.65 %

1,12,00,000 100.00 %

Number of shares Percentage

10,56,000 10.23 %

92,64,000 89.77 %

1,03,20,000 100.00 %
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*REGISTRAR TO AN ISSUE AND TRANSFER AGENTS: 

Link Intime India Private Limited 

C-101, 247, Park, L. B. S. Marg, Vikhroli (West), 

Mumbai - 400083.  

Tel No.: 022 - 49186270, Fax No.: 022 - 4918 6060 

Email: rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in 

Other Disclosures: 

I) Related Party Transactions:

There are no materially signicant transactions with the related parties viz. Promoters, Directors or the 

Management, their Subsidiaries or relatives conicting with Company's interest. The transactions with 

related parties are in the ordinary course of business and on arm's length basis. Suitable disclosure as 

required by the applicable Accounting Standards, has been made in the Annual Report. 

ii) Statutory compliance, Penalties and Strictures:

Fine has been imposed on the Company by the Stock Exchanges on issue of bonus share in F.Y.2019-20. 

The details of the same are as per below:

Reg. of SEBI (Issue of Capital 
and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2018 

Due date of commencement 
of trading 

No. of days of non
compliance  

295 (1) 19-Oct-2019  3  

*ne amount shall be Rs. 20,000 per day of non-compliance till the date of compliance.

Particulars Amount

Fine payable (20,000 per day) 60,000

Tax (18% GST) 10,800

Tatal Fine Payable (including 18% GST) 70,800

iii) Compliance with Mandatory requirements and adoption of Non-Mandatory requirements:

The Company has fully complied with the mandatory requirements of SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

NSDL  CDSL
% OF SHARES LYING WITH DEPOSITORIES AS ON 31.03.2021
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iv) Establishment of Vigil mechanism, Whistle Blower Policy and afrmation:

T h e  W h i s t l e  B l o w e r  P o l i c y  i s  a v a i l a b l e  o n  t h e  w e b s i t e  o f  t h e  C o m p a n y  a t 

https://www.tirupatiforge.com/le/Vigil%20Mechanism_Whistle%20Blower_Tirupati.pdf. No 

person has been denied access to the Audit Committee for any grievance.

V) Web-link for policy on Material Subsidiaries:

The Company has a policy for determining Material Subsidiaries and the same is available on the 

Company's website and a web link thereto is as under: 

https://www.tirupatiforge.com/le/material-subsidiaries.pdf

    At present, the Company does not have any Subsidiary.

6) Web-link for policy on Related Party Transaction:

The policy on dealing with related party transactions is available on the website of the Company at 

https://www.tirupatiforge.com/le/Related%20Party%20Transaction_Tirupati.pdf

7) Commodity Price risks and hedging activities:

Commodity price risk is a nancial risk on an entity's nancial performance upon uctuations in the 

prices of commodities that are beyond the control of the entity, since they are primarily driven by 

external market forces. Any Sharp uctuations in prices will create signicant business challenges, 

impacting the protability of the company. To meet the price uctuations in the price of these 

commodities, company secures materials to meet around six months of its operational requirement.

8) Details of Utilisation of fund raised through preferential allotment:

The details of fund raised through 11,88,000 convertible warrants on Preferential basis to Non-

promoters of the Company in previous nancial year on April 08, 2019.

The Company has completed the process of allotting equity shares against total 11,88,000 convertible 

warrants issued on preferential basis as per terms and conditions approved by the members on 15th 

March, 2019. Utilization of the same as at 31.03.2021 is as mentioned below :

Purpose of the preferential issue To be Utilized as per 
the objectives  

Actual utilisation
as per the
objectives

Long Term and Short Term Working 
C a p i t a l  R e q u i r e m e n t  a n d  t o 
support future business expansions
Plans 

 

53,460,000/ - 4,12,60,869/ -  1,21,99,131/ -  

 

Unutilisation
amount as on
31st March, 2021

9.) A certicate from a company secretary in practice for Non-disqualication of board:

A certicate from a company secretary in practice is attached hereinafter and part of this report.

10) Details where the board had not accepted any recommendation of any committee of the board 

which is mandatorily required:

During the nancial year 2020-21, the Board of Directors have accepted all the recommendations of 

its committees.

69Tirupati Forge Limited  Annual Report 2020-21



11) Total Fees paid for all services by statutory auditor:

Total fee paid to Statutory Auditor for all services rendered is 1,25,000.

12) disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition 

and Redressal) Act, 2013:

Sr. No. Particulars Figures 

01. number of complaints led during the nancial year 0 

02. number of complaints disposed of during the nancial year 0 

0 03. number of complaints pending as on end of the
nancial year

13) The corporate governance report shall also disclose the extent to which the discretionary  

requirements as specied in Part E of Schedule II have been adopted:

During the year under review, The Company has not adopted any discretionary requirements as 

specied in Part E of Schedule II.

14) The disclosures of the compliance with corporate governance requirements specied in regulation 

17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of regulation 46 shall be made in the section on 

corporate governance of the annual report.

The Company has complied with the Corporate Governance requirements specied in regulation 17 to 

27 and clauses (b) to (i) of sub regulation (2) of regulation 46 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

The Company has complied with the requirements of the Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

15) Transfer of Shares to Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF):

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 124(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act'), read with relevant 

Rules, the Company is required to transfer the shares for which dividend has not been paid or claimed 

for 7 consecutive years or more to Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF).

stAs of 31  March, 2021, the Company has not paid any dividend in any nancial year and on account of 

that there is no requirement of transfer of share to Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF).

16) Disclosures with respect to demat suspense account/ unclaimed suspense account:

During the year review, No shares of the company lying in the D-mat suspense account or unclaimed 

suspense account.

17) The Senior Management Personnel of the Company have conrmed to the Board of Directors that they 

do not have any personal interest relating to material, nancial and commercial transactions entered 

into with the Company that may have a potential conict with the interests of the Company at large.
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18) The Chairman, Managing Director and Chief Financial Ofcer have certied to the Board, inter-alia the 

accuracy of nancial statements and adequacy of Internal Controls for the nancial reporting purpose 

as required under Regulation 17 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015, for the nancial year ended 31st March, 2021. The Annual Certicate given by the 

Chairman, Managing Director and the Chief Financial Ofcer is published in this report.

19) The Internal Auditor directly reports to the Audit Committee. The Internal Auditor makes 

presentations and reports to the Audit Committee of the Company on a quarterly basis pertaining to 

the key internal audit ndings and the action plan agreed with the Management.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors,
Tirupati Forge Limited

Sd/-
Hiteshkumar G. Thummar
Chairman, Managing Director
DIN:02112952

Place: Hadamtala (Rajkot)
thDate: 26  August, 2021
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Date : 29.07.2021
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Date : 29.07.2021
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Place: Hadamtala (Rajkot)
th

Date: 26  August, 2021
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CEO/CFO CERTIFICATION

To,
The Board of Directors,
TIRUPATI FORGE LIMITED

Sub : Under Regulation 17(8) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)

 Regulations, 2015

A. We have reviewed nancial statements and the cash ow statement for the year and that to the
best of their knowledge and belief:

 1. these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or
  contain statements that might be misleading;

 2. these statements together present a true and fair view of the listed entity's affairs and are in

  compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

B. There are, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the listed entity
 during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the listed entity's code of conduct.

C. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for nancial reporting 
and that they have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the listed entity 
pertaining to nancial reporting and they have disclosed to the auditors and the audit committee, 
deciencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which they are aware and 
the steps they have taken or propose to take to rectify these deciencies.

D. We have indicated to the auditors and the Audit Committee

 1. signicant changes in internal control over nancial reporting during the year;

 2. signicant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been

  disclosed in the notes to the nancial statements; and

 3. Instances of signicant fraud of which they have become aware and the involvement

  therein, if any, of the management or an employee having a signicant role in the listed

  entity's internal control system over nancial reporting.

 For, TIRUPATI FORGE LIMITED For, TIRUPATI FORGE LIMITED

 sd/-                                                                                                                                                          sd/-
 Atul L. Natu                                                                                                Hiteshkumar G. Thummar
 Chief Financial Ofcer                                                                                            Managind Director

 Hadamtala (Rajkot)        Hadamtala (Rajkot)
th th 26  August, 2021        26  August, 2021
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Annexure-III

DISCLOSURES PERTAINING TO REMUNERATION 

(Pursuant to Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 as amended)

1. Ratio of the remuneration of each Executive Director to the Median remuneration of the Employees of 

the Company and Percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Ofcer, Chief 

Executive Ofcer and Company Secretary:

Sr.
No.  

Name of Person  Designation  Ratio to median 
remuneration of 
the employees

% increase in
remuneration

01  Mr.  Hiteshkumar Thummar

 

Managing Director 

 

17.87:1 --- 

02  Mr. Bhavesh Barasiya

 

Whole Time Director 7.14:1 --- 

03  Ms. Jalpa Doshi  
[Resigned w.e.f. 30.09.2020

 

Company Secretary and
Compliance Ofcer

 

 

1.15:1 --- 

04  Mr. Vivek M. Moliya

 [Appointed w.e.f. 01.10.2020]

 
 

1.65:1 
 

05  Mr. Atul Natu  Chief Financial Ofcer 8.27:1 -01.98%  

     Notes:

 o Calculation of Median employee was based on actual salary paid to all employees. The Employees 

who left company in between nancial year and the employees joined company in between 

nancial year is actually considered.

 o Ratio of Ms. Jalpa Doshi – Company Secretary and Compliance Ofcer (Who has resigned w.e.f 

30.09.2020) is taken on basis of actual payment made to him.

 o Ratio of Mr. Vivek M. Moliya – Company Secretary and Compliance Ofcer (Who has appointed 

w.e.f 01.10.2020) is taken on basis of actual payment made to him.

 o The Independent Directors of the Company are entitled to sitting fees and commission as per the 

statutory provisions however no sitting fees is paid to them for the nancial year 2020-21

 o Non-Executive Directors do not receive any sitting fees or commissions.

Company Secretary and
Compliance Ofcer

--- 
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2. The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the nancial year: 

-34.42%

3.  The number of permanent employees on the rolls of the Company as on 31 March 2021:

 92 (Ninety Two)

4.  Average Percentile increase already made in the salaries of the employees other than the 

managerial personnel in last nancial year and comparison with percentile increase in the 

managerial remuneration and justication thereof:

 

 There is 34.42% decrease in the salaries of the employees other than Managerial Personnel. 

Moreover, there was decrease in the remuneration of CFO of the Company, which is as equal to the 

average decrease in the other employees of the Company. 

  

5. Afrmation that the remuneration is as per Remuneration Policy of the Company:

The remuneration is as per the Nomination and Remuneration Policy for the Directors, Key 
Managerial Personnel and Other Employees of the Company, formulated pursuant to the 
provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013.

By and on behalf of the board
 TIRUPATI FORGE LIMITED  

sd/-   
Hiteshkumar G. Thummar 
Chairman &Managing Director             
[DIN: 02112952]

Place: Hadamtala (Rajkot)
thDate: 26  August, 2021
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Annexure IV

Form No. AOC-2 of Tirupati Forge Limited for the year ended on March 31, 2021

[Pursuant to Clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Companies Act- 2013, and Rule 8 (2) of 
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014- AOC-2]

1) DETAILS OF CONTRACTS / ARRANGEMENTS / TRANSACTIONS NOT AT ARM'S 

LENGTH BASIS.

  

  There were no contracts / arrangements / transactions entered into during the year ended    

March 31, 2021, which were not at arm's length basis.

2) DETAILS OF CONTRACTS / ARRANGEMENTS / TRANSACTIONS AT ARM'S LENGTH

 BASIS.

Sr.
No. 

Name of
Related Party 

Nature of
Relationship

Duration
of

Contract
Amount

Nature
of

Transaction

Approval
by Board

1 
Mr. Hitesh
Thummar 

Managing
Director 

15 Years Lease Rent 60,000 
p.a. 

July 09, 
2018 

By and on behalf of the board

TIRUPATI FORGE LIMITED  

 sd/-   

Hiteshkumar G. Thummar 

Chairman &Managing Director             

[DIN: 02112952]

Place: Hadamtala (Rajkot)
thDate: 26  August, 2021
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To

The Members,

TIRUPATI FORGE LIMITED 

Subject: Justication for Related Party Transactions held during the Financial Year 2021-22

1. For Taking Property on Lease:

The Company has entered in the contract with Mr. Hitesh Thummar to take his land on lease in the 
thnancial year 2018-19 for 15 years. The transaction was approved by the Board of Director on 9 July 2018 as 

stwell as by Share Holder in its Annual General Meeting held for year ended on 31  March 2018. This 

transaction is also on arm's length basis. 

The disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with related parties 

referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, including certain arm's length 

transaction under third proviso thereto are mentioned in AOC-2.

Further, there is no adverse effect on interest of any members, nancial institution, creditors or society 

on account of this transaction. 

By and on behalf of the board
TIRUPATI FORGE LIMITED  

sd/-   
Hiteshkumar G. Thummar 
 Chairman& Managing Director             
 [DIN: 02112952]     

Place: Hadamtala (Rajkot)
th

Date: 26  August, 2021
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SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
ST

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31  MARCH, 2021

Form No. MR-3
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment 

and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,
The Members, 
TIRUPATI FORGE LIMITED 
Plot No. 1-5; Survey No. 92/1,
Near Shan Cement, Hadamtala Industrial Area,
Tal: KotdaSanganiHadamtala
Rajkot 360311 (Gujarat) India

I have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the 
a d h e r e n c e  t o  g o o d  c o r p o r a t e  p r a c t i c e s  b y  T I R U P A T I  F O R G E  L I M I T E D  ( C I N : 
L27320GJ2012PLC071594)(hereinafter called the “Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a 
manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts /statutory compliances 
and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verication of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns led and other 
records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its ofcers, 
agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my 
opinion, during the audit period covering the nancial year ended on 31st March, 2021 ('Audit Period'), the 
Company has, complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has 
proper board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the 
reporting made hereinafter:

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns led and other records maintained by 
the Company for the nancial year ended on 31st March, 2021 according to the provisions of:

I. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules made thereunder;

II. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the Rules made thereunder;

III. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations & Bye-laws framed thereunder;

IV. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 (FEMA) & the Rules and Regulations made 

thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External 

Commercial Borrowings;

Annexure V
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V. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of 

India Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act'):-

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 

Regulations, 2011; 

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015. 

c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2018; 

d. Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benets) Regulations, 2014. 

Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit period;

e. Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015

f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 

2008 - Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit period;

g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 

Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

h. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,2009AND 

SEBI (Delisting of Equity Shares) (Amendment) Regulations, 2016: Not Applicable to the 

Company during the Audit period; 

i.  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018 - Not 
applicable to the Company during Audit period.

VI As conrmed and identied by the company, the following laws as specically applicable to the 
Company.

a. The Trade Mark Act, 1999

VII  Based on the representation made by the Company and its ofcers, the Company has proper 
system and process in place for compliance under the other applicable Laws, Acts, Rules, 
Regulations and Guidelines. Major heads/groups of Acts, Laws, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines 
and Standards as applicable to the Company are given below:

a. Labour Laws and other incidental laws related to labour and employees appointed by the 

Company either on its payroll or on contractual basis as related to wages, provident fund, 

ESIC, compensation etc.
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I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

i)  Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 
ii) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with the National Stock Exchange of 

India Limited.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, 
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. except below:

1. The Charge for the Credit facility of Vehicle is not registered; 

I further report that:

Ø The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of 

Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. However the 
stterm of the Independent Director was ended on 31  July 2019. The approval of the second 

term of the Independent directors was obtain from share holder after closing of Financial 
styear ended on 31  March 2020by passing special resolution. 

Ø Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and 

detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance or lesser days as agreed 

by all directors pursuant to clause no. 1.3.7 of Secretarial Standard 1 (“SS 1”), circulated 

separately or placed at the Meetings of the Board and the Committees, after due compliance 

with the SS 1 and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and 

clarications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at 

the meeting
Ø The Management informed to us that there is no deviation of the fund which is raised 

through preferential allotment, therefore statement of deviation is not led to the Stock 
Exchange.

Ø Minutes of the meeting is duly recorded and signed by the Chairman, Decision of Board is 

unanimous and no dissenting views have been recorded.

Ø That the company has not led /led some Form late in time with additional fees to 

Registrar of Companies/Regional Director/Central Government under The Companies 

Act, 2013. The Management claried that it is a procedural lapse only. 

I further report that compliance of applicable nancial laws including Direct and Indirect Tax laws by the 
Company has not been reviewed in this Audit since the same has been subject to review by the Statutory 
Auditors and other designated professionals.

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size 
and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations 
and guidelines.

I further report that during the Audit Period the company has done transaction as under which can be 
considered material in nature:
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Ø The Company has appointed Mr. Ramesh Patel (Din: 02738359) and Mr. Sachin Ravani 

(Din: 07874835) as independent Directors for the second term by passing special resolution 
th

on 28  May 2020. 

Ø The approval of Shareholder is granted for appointment of Mr. Anand Mohan Srivastava 

(Din: 08684010) as an independent Director and Mr. Bhavesh Barasiya (Din: 05332180) as a 
th

Whole time Director on 28  May 2020.

Ø CS Jalpa Doshi- was resigned from the post of Company Secretary and Compliance Ofcer 
th

on 30  September 2020. 

Ø The Company has appointed CS Vivek Moliya as full time Company Secretary and 
st Compliance Ofcer with effect from 01 October, 2020. 

Ø The Company has allotted 8,80,000 Equity Shares (Including 3,30,000 reserve Bonus shares) 

by way of Conversion of Warrant.  

th 
This report is to be read with letter dated 29 JULY 2021 which is annexed as “Annexure-A” and forms an 
integral part of this report.

 
 PIYUSH JETHVA

Practising Company secretary 

Place: Rajkot   sd/- 
 

                                                       FCS: 6377, CP: 5452 
UDIN: F006377C000703392 

thDate : 29  JULY 2021
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ANNEXURE –A
To,
The Members, 
TIRUPATI FORGE LIMITED 
Plot No. 1-5; Survey No. 92/1,
Near Shan Cement, Hadamtala Industrial Area,
Tal: KotdaSanganiHadamtala
Rajkot 360311 (Gujarat) India

th
Secretarial Audit Report dated 29  JULY 2021 is to be read along with this letter.

1.   The Company's Management is responsible for preparation and maintenance of Secretarial 
Records and for devising proper systems to ensure compliance with the provision of 
applicable laws and regulations. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the 
secretarial records, standards and procedures followed by the Company with respect to 
secretarial compliances by inspecting the records, documents return etc. on random basis.

2.   We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain 
reasonableassuranceabout the correctnessofthe contentsof the Secretarial records. The 
verication was done on test basis and in random manner to ensure that correct facts are 
reected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed 
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3.   We have not veried the correctness and appropriateness of nancial records and Books of 
Accounts of the company.

4.   Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the 
compliance of Laws, Rules and Regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable Laws, Rules, 
Regulations, Standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited 
to the verication of procedures on test basis.

 6.   The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company 

nor of the efcacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of 

the company.

 
 PIYUSH JETHVA

Practising Company secretary 

Place: Rajkot   sd/- 
 
                                                       FCS: 6377, CP: 5452 

UDIN: F006377C000703392 

thDate : 29  JULY 2021
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Secretarial compliance report of 

TIRUPATI FORGE LIMITED 
For the year ended 31st March 2021 

 
I have examined: 

(a) All the documents and records made available to us and explanation provided by 
TIRUPATI FORGE LIMITED (“the listed entity”), 

 (b)  The lings/ submissions made by the listed entity to the stock exchanges, 
 (c)  Website of the listed entity, 

(d)  Any other document/ ling, as may be relevant, which has been relied upon to 
make this certication, 

st for the year ended 31 MARCH 2021 (“Review Period”) in respect of compliance with the 
provisions of: 

(a)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (“SEBI Act”) and the 
Regulations, circulars, guidelines issued thereunder; and 

(b) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (“SCRA”), rules made thereunder 
and the Regulations, circulars, guidelines issued thereunder by the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”); 

The specic Regulations, whose provisions and the circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder, have 
been examined, include:- 

(a)  Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015;

(b)  Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2018; 

(c)  Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

(d)  Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations,2018 
(there were no events requiring compliance during the Review Period)

(e)  Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benets) 
Regulations, 2014; (there were no events requiring compliance during the Review 
Period)

(f)  Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) 
Regulations, 2008; (there were no events requiring compliance during the Review 
Period)

Annexure V
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(g)  Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible and 
Redeemable Preference Shares) Regulations, 2013 (there were no events requiring 
compliance during the Review Period)

(h)  Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 
Regulations, 2015 and circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder; 

And based on the above examination and subject to clarication provided in “Annexure-A” 
which should be forming part of this report, I/We hereby report that, during the Review Period:

(a) The listed entity has complied with the provisions of the above Regulations and 
circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder, except in respect of matters specied 
below:- 

Sr. 
No. 

Compliance 
Requirement 
(Regulations/ 

circulars / guidelines 

including specic 
clause 

Deviations  
 

Observations/ 
Remarks of the 

Practicing Company 
Secretary 

01 NIL NIL NIL 

(b)  The listed entity has maintained proper records under the provisions of the above                       
Regulations and circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder insofar as it appears from 
my examination of those records.

(c)  There were no actions taken against the Listed Entity/ Its Promoters / Directors / 
Material Subsidiaries either by SEBI or by Stock Exchanges (including under the 
Standard Operating Procedures issued by SEBl through various circulars) under 
the aforesaid Acts/ Regulations and Circulars,/ Guidelines issued thereunder in so 
far as it appears from declaration provided by management and my examination of 
those records.

(d)  The reporting of actions by the listed entity to comply with the observations made in 

previous reports does not arise during the Review Period.                                                                           

  PIYUSH JETHVA
Practising Company secretary 

Place: Rajkot   sd/- 
 
                                                       FCS: 6377, CP: 5452 

UDIN: F006377C000518185

thDate : 25  JUNE, 2021
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Place: Rajkot 

thDate : 25  JUNE, 2021

ANNEXURE –A
To,
The Members, 
TIRUPATI FORGE LIMITED
Plot No. 1-5; Survey No. 92/1,
Near Shan Cement, 
Hadamtala Industrial Area,
Tal: Kotda Sangani, Hadamtala - 360311
Dist: Rajkot, Gujarat (India)  

th
Secretarial Compliance Report dated 25  June 2021 is to be read along with this
clarication.

1. The Company's Management is responsible for preparation and maintenance of all 
records and for devising proper systems to ensure compliance with the provision of 
applicable laws and regulations.  Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the 
records, standards and procedures followed by the Company with respect to 
compliances by inspecting the records, documents, return etc. on random basis.

2. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the 
compliance of Laws, Rules and Regulations and happening of events etc. 

3. The compliance of the provisions of applicable Laws, Rules, Regulations, and 
Standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination is limited to the 
verication of procedures on test basis.

 PIYUSH JETHVA
Practising Company secretary 

  sd/- 

                                                       FCS: 6377, CP: 5452 
UDIN: F006377C000518185
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Forge Limited

Management Discussion & Analysis
Report 2020-21



GLOBAL ECONOMY:

The global economy witnessed an unprecedented crisis in 2020 as the outbreak of the novel coronavirus 
pandemic towards the end of 2019 spread rapidly across the globe. While stringent lockdowns and 
restrictions enforced by major economies played a critical role in saving lives, they resulted in extreme 
damage to economic activities, thereby plunging the world economy into a deep recession.  Despite that, 
the global economy contracted by 3.3% in 2020 as per the April 2021 estimates of the International 
Monetary Fund (IMF). While the global GDP saw sequential improvement in the latter half of 2020, new 
mutations of the virus, seen rst in emerging markets and then in developed nations, have the potential to 
impede the ongoing economic recovery, and this apprehension has added to near-term uncertainty. 
Speedy development and roll out of vaccines, as well as their ability to act against new mutations, will 
ascertain the path to normalization. But disruptions also lead to new opportunities. Trends such as 
automation, digitization, increasing demand for renewable energy and supply chain diversication are 
beginning to solidify. As per the IMF, the global economy is projected to grow at 6% in 2021, moderating to 
4.4% during 2022.

World Economic Outlook Growth Projections: 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

(Real GDP, annual percent change) ESTIMATE PROJECTIONS 
2020 2021 2022 

World output -3.3 6.0 4.4 

Advanced Economies -4.7 5.1 3.6 

Emerging Markets and Developing 
Economies 

-2.2 6.7 5.0 

*Source: IMF, World Economic outlook Update, January 2021 
 

Annexure VI
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In view of the economic momentum in Q4 of 2020-21, most economic experts had predicted a sharp 
recovery in India's economy. But the sudden outbreak of the second wave of Covid-19 across the Indian 
landmass, has emerged as a signicant challenge to India's economic progress. Rating agency Standard & 
Poor's stated that a drawn-out Covid-19 outbreak will impede India's economic recovery. Other 
institutions of global repute have also lowered their growth estimates for India in 2021-22.

The RBI announced rate cuts in FY 2019-20 to revive growth and mitigate economic impact of the COVID- 
19 pandemic. The repo rate remains unchanged at 4% and the RBI is continuing with its accommodative 
stance and will continue if necessary, to sustain growth on a durable basis and continue to mitigate the 
impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on the economy, while ensuring that ination remains within the target 
going forward. To provide liquidity support and strengthen public in general in their ght against COVID-
19 pandemic, the RBI Governor announced “on tap liquidity” to the public in general.

A. INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND PERFORMANCE

The Indian automotive industry is the pillar of the manufacturing sector and provides employment to a 

large pool of people. Being the fourth largest automotive market globally, the sector plays a vital role in 

India's aspiration to become a USD 5 Trillion economy. Increasing urbanization, large working-age 

population, rising incomes and strong impetus on infrastructure and construction sectors have been 

driving the industry's growth over the years. It is a major input to the sectors which support economic 

growth of the nation, such as, Automobile, Industrial Machinery, Power, Construction & Mining 

Equipment, Railways and General Engineering. 

The Indian forging industry is well recognized globally for its technical capabilities. With an installed 

capacity of around 38.5 lakh MT, Indian forging industry has a capability to forge variety of raw materials 

like Carbon steel, alloy steel, stainless steel, super alloy, titanium, aluminium and so forth, as per the 

requirements of user industry.

Indian Economy: 

-10

0

10

20

FY 2021 Est FY 2022 Proj FY 2023 Est.

India GDP %

 

According to the National Statistical Ofce 

(“NSO”), India's GDP is estimated to contract by 

8.0% in FY 2020-21. To control the spread of the 

COVID-19 pandemic, India had imposed severe 

lockdowns in April and May 2020 resulting in 

curtailment of economic activities. As a result of 

the lockdowns, India's GDP contracted by 24.4% in 

the rst quarter of FY 2020-21. Based on data 

provided by the NSO, gross value added at basic 

prices for FY 2020-21 from the manufacturing sector is estimated to decline by 6.4% compared to FY 2019-

20.The Covid-19 impacted various facets including consumer behavior, logistics, industrial production, 

construction activities, government earnings and overall trade activities. The lockdown also exacerbated 

unemployment and dampened consumer spending, which contributes to nearly half of India's GDP. As 

per International Monetary Fund (“IMF”) projections in March 2021, Indian economic growth is estimated 

at 12.5% in FY 2021-22 and 6.9% in FY 2022-23.

90 Tirupati Forge Limited  Annual Report 2020-21



B. COMPANY PERFORMANCE AND BUSINESS OUTLOOK

The Company's manufacturing presence in the overseas market has been a footprint close to its customers. 

The Company is engaged with the production of forging products only. However for convenience of 

existing client the company is doing trading of casting product but never engaged in casting procedure. 

Over the past 18 months, the Company has undertaken series of measures to turn around the nancial 

performance on positive note.

C. RISK AND CONCERN

It is imperative to identify risks and take adequate mitigation measures. The risks may be internal as 

well as external in nature. Tirupati has a viable risk management framework to identify, manage, and 

mitigate key business risks and maintain consistent growth and success.

91Tirupati Forge Limited  Annual Report 2020-21



SR. 

NO.
 

PARTICUALRS
 

POSSIBLE RISK
 

MITIGATION STRATEGY
 

 

01.
 

Industry Risk
 

 
. 

 

The Company look to nd
diversication of business into 
multiple industries such as 
Automotive, Defence, Oil and 
Gas, Mining and Construction, 
Power, Aerospace, E-mobility, 
etc. has enabled the Company 
to de-risk its business model. In
addition, the Company has also 
diversied geographically with 
a global presence across 5 
c o u n t r i e s .  T h e  C o m p a n y 
continues to evaluate and
trying to add newer geographies
and newer customers to its
portfolio. With a diverse global
presence, the impact of country
-specic shocks will be minimal. 

02.  Foreign Exchange 

Risk  

 

 
03.  Raw Material Risk 

 
04.

 
Technology Risk

 

T h e  C o m p a n y  p r a c t i c e s 
hedging itself from exchange 
rate uctuations.

The Company is embracing the 
t r a n s f o r m a t i v e  c h a n g e s 
s h a p i n g  t h e  a u t o m o t i v e 
industry and is proactively 
d e v e l o p i n g  n e w  g r o w t h 
engines. Investment in newer 
and best-in-class technologies 
will enable the Company to 
adapt to future changes and 
cater to emerging demands, 
thereby building capabilities to 
be future-ready.

A  g l o b a l  e c o n o m i c 
slowdown or continent-
s p e c i  c  s h o c k s  m a y 
disrupt these markets and 
a d v e r s e l y  a f f e c t  t h e 
C o m p a n y ' s  r e v e n u e 
generation capability.

A n y  a d v e r s e  o r 
unfavorable movement in 
the exchange rates may 
a d v e r s e l y  i m p a c t  i t s 
protability

Unavailability of critical 
raw materials such as 
steel, aluminum, energy, 
etc. at competitive rates 
may interrupt Tirupati 
Forge's operations and 
adversely impact margins 
and protability.

Steel is the most crucial raw 
material for the Company, the 
availability of which is met 
through a various clients, thus 
ensuring continued supply at 
competitive prices.

The Company operates in 
a highly competitive, 
regulated, and cyclical 
industry. The entire
automobile industry is the 
midst of a technology 
transformation. Failure to 
stay abreast with the 
evolving technological 
d e v e l o p m e n t s  m a y 
damage the Company's 
g l o b a l  c o m p e t i t i v e 
position.
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05.
 

Funding Risk
 

 

06.  Talent Risk  

 

 

 

7.  COVID-19 Risk  

 

The Company's operations 
entail sustained investments 
in capacity, technology, and 
e x t e n s i v e  R & D . 
Unavailability of external 
s o u r c e s  o f  f u n d s  a t 
competitive rates and at the 
right time may impact its 
b u s i n e s s  p l a n s  a n d 
protability.

With its efcient utilization of 
working capital and prudent 
capital allocation capabilities, the 
Company has maintained good 
cash and equivalent position on 
the books.

Talented pool of employees 
a n d  i t s  r e t e n t i o n  a r e 
p a r a m o u n t  f o r  t h e 
Company's  sustainable 
growth. Failure to retain 
skil led teams and high 
attrition levels may affect the 
day-to-day functioning of 
the Company and adversely 
a f f e c t  i t s  b u s i n e s s 
operations.

The Company has people-centric 
policies and promotes across all 
the hierarchies. The robust HR 
policy of the Company ensures 
maintaining a conducive work 
e n v i r o n m e n t  a n d  m i n i m a l 
attrition rates.  Further,  the 
Company encourages new talent 
acquisition and rewards excellent 
employee performance.

The disruptions due to 
C O V I D - 1 9  r e l a t e d 
lockdowns, challenges in 
p r o d u c t i o n ,  m a n a g i n g 
supply chains pose multi-
dimensional risks that are 
rapidly evolving. These can 
disrupt supply chain and 
manufacturing processes 
a n d  a d v e r s e l y  i m p a c t 
business.

While the physical & mental 
effect of the pandemic and its
a d v e r s e  i m p a c t  o n  t h e 
employees takes precedence, 
the Company continues to 
monitor these developments 
closely and keep exploring 
a l t e r n a t i v e  s t r a t e g i e s 
inc luding  use  o f  d ig i ta l 
m e d i u m  a n d  a  h y b r i d 
approach of work from home 
and presence of staff required 
to minimize its impact on the 
business.

 
8. AD/CVD DUTY

RISK
The Company is exporting 
Carbon Steel Forged Flanges 
to USA under Importer of 
Records. So any future 
custom duties of AD/CVD 
will increase then company 
has to pay this.

The Company is trying to get 
m a x i m u m  p r o  t  i n   a n g e 
business so any future duty will 
come then company can not 
suffer loss.
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D. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS

Tirupati Forge Limited (TFL) maintains adequate internal control systems including internal nancial 

control systems, which provide, among other things, reasonable assurance of recording the transactions of 

its operations in all material aspects. This system also protects against signicant misuse or loss of 

Company assets. 

The Company has a system of carrying out internal audit, covering all business processes to review the 

internal control systems. The internal control system and mechanism is reviewed periodically by the Audit 

Committee to make it robust so as to meet the challenges of the business. The Company has an adequate 

and efcient Internal Control System, which provides protection to all its assets against loss from 

unauthorized use and for correct reporting of transactions. The internal control systems are further 

supplemented by internal audit carried out of the Internal Auditor of the Company and periodical review 

by the Management. The Company has put in place proper controls which are reviewed at regular 

intervals to ensure that transactions are properly authorized and correctly reported and assets are 

safeguarded. The Audit Committee of the Board addresses issues raised by both the Internal and Statutory 

Auditors. The Internal Control Systems are implemented to safeguard Company's assets from loss or 

damage, to keep constant check on cost structure and to provide adequate nancial and accounting 

controls and implement accounting standards.

E. HUMAN RESOURCES

Since March 2020, life has been upended completely by the global pandemic. Ensuring business 

operations, employee safety and welfare became the foremost concerns for Tirupati Forge. The pandemic 

made the Company rethink not just its business strategies but also the employee environment and TFL 

proactively adopted the new normal. 

Initiatives for Safety and Welfare:

1. Safe Environment at Workplace:

Tirupati Forge Limited followed a strict 'no visitor' policy keeping in mind the social distancing norms. 

Physical meetings or visitors in exceptional cases were allowed only with a proper precausions. For the 

safety of employees, temperature screening and masks at each entry point of factories and ofces was 

installed. To maintain safe hygiene levels, employee transport vehicles, shop oor were disinfected 

multiple times in a shift.

2. Support System:

Tirupati Forge Limited has always been known for having a culture of a big extended family and strong 

support system. During these challenging times, this support was needed the most. TFL's teams 

ensured twice a week personal connect with all employees suffering from coronavirus, whether they 

were isolating at home or were hospitalized.

3. Vaccination:

Employees have always been the Company's rst priority and it is important to create a safe and 

secured ecosystem for them to thrive in. In present time, majority employee of the company were 

vaccinated with rst dose.

4. COVID Training and Re-Grouping:
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Tirupati Forge Limited HR and support staff has been extremely efcient in ensuring all the policy 

initiatives and employee reach. It was also important to train the security staff regarding COVID-19 and 

the security procedures to be followed. While the pandemic has altered the work-life conditions, it has 

not affected TFL's spirit. It is committed to come out of this pandemic, while ensuring safety and 

wellbeing of employees.

F. STRENGTHS, OPPORTUNITIES, WEAKNESS AND THREATS ANALYSIS

·  Quality of products

·  Products are used by automobile

    industry, reneries, oil pipelines, etc.

·  Experienced  Promoters

•  Under utilization of capacity 

•  Undertaking Government Contracts 

•  Input Price Volatility

•  Government Polices

•  Dependent on few customers 

•  Forex risk

•  Volatility in raw material price -

   Mild Steel, Alloy Steel, Carbon Steel

  Stainless Steel, etc 

Strength Opportunities

Weakness Threat
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2020-21 2019-20

Ratio Name Ratio 

Debtors Turnover 55.53 40.86 

   

Inventory Turnover 3.78 5.25 

   

Interest Coverage Ratio 3.4 2.0 

   

Current Ratio 1.83 2.49 

   

Debt Equity Ratio 0.36 0.21 

   

Operating Prot Margin 2.51%  2.63% 

   

1 

    

2 

    

3 

    

4 

    

5 

    

6 

    

7 

1 

    

2 

    

3 

    

4 

    

5 

    

6 

    

7 Net Prot Margin 1.28%  1.00% 

Sr.
No. 

Debtors Turnover 

Inventory Turnover 

Interest Coverage Ratio 

Current Ratio 

Debt Equity Ratio 

Operating Prot Margin 

Net Prot Margin 

Ratio Name Ratio Sr.
No. 

Explanation:

l The signicant change in the above mentioned ratios is due to change in prot and sales 
of The Company.

l During the year there were so many factors affected the protability of the company.

l Interest cost is decreased on account of receipt of subsidy on interest paid on term loan 
led to change in the interest coverage ratio.

l Current ratio is decreased on account of increase in short term borrowing and trade 
payables.

l Debt Equity ratio is increase on account of increase in short term borrowing and 
working capital term loan availed during the year to meet covid led exigencies.

KEY FINANCIAL RATIO

96 Tirupati Forge Limited  Annual Report 2020-21



Annexure – VII

ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR PURSUANT TO RULE 8 OF COMPANIES
(CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY POLICY) RULES, 2014

1. A brief outline of the company's CSR policy, including overview of projects or programs proposed 

to be undertaken and a reference to the web-link to the CSR policy and projects or programs.

Our vision is to drive 'holistic empowerment' of the community through implementation of 

sustainable initiative, which will have maximum societal impact by identifying the critical needs and 

gaps.

We shall remain committed to the following operating principles –

i. Conducting business in a socially responsible and ethical manner;

ii. Protecting the environment and the safety of people;

iii. Supporting human rights; and

iv. Engaging, learning from, respecting and supporting the local communities and cultures with which 

we work.

The Board of Directors of your Company had approved the CSR Policy in accordance with the 

p r o v i s i o n s  o f  s e c t i o n  1 3 5  o f  t h e  C o m p a n i e s  a n d  i t  s h a l l  a p p l y  t o  a l l  C S R 

projects/programmes/activities undertaken by the Company as per Schedule VII of the Act. 

2. Composition of the CSR Committee is as under:

Sr. 

No. 
Name of Director Designation Category  Attendance in CSR 

Committee Meetings  

17/07/2020  11/01/2021  

1 Mr. Hiteshkumar 

G. Thummar 

Chairman Managing Director  

 

ü   ü   

2 Mr. Bhavesh T. 

Barsiya 

Member Whole-time Director  ü   ü   

3 Mr. Sachin P. 

Ravani 

Member Independent Director  ü   ü   

 
CSRCommittee-https://www.tirupatiforge.com/le/Corporate%20Social%20Responsibility %20Policy_Tirupati%20Forge%20Limted.pdf

CSR Policy- https://www.tirupatiforge.com/le/Composition%20of%20CSR%20Committee.pdf
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4. Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of 

rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach 

the report) - Not applicable for nancial year 2020-21.

5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies 

(Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the nancial 

year, if any - NIL

6. Average Net Prot of the company for last 3 nancial years:

The average net prot of the three nancial years preceding the reporting nancial year (i.e. 2019-20, 

2018-19, 2017-18) calculated in accordance with Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 is Rs. 

1,62,29,731.47/-

7. Prescribed CSR expenditure:

1. Details of CSR spent during the nancial year 2020-21:

(a) Amount spent for the nancial year: Rs. 4,00,594/-

 (b) Amount unspent: Nil

© Manner in which the amount spent during the nancial year is detailed below:   

Sr. 

No.
 CSR 

Project/ 

Activity 

Identied
 

Sector in 
which the 
project is
Covered

 

 

Area of
Project or
Programme

 

 

 

Budgeted
CSR
Amount
(Rs.)

 

 

 

Amount
Spent 
for CSR
(Rs.)

 

 

 

Total
Amount
Spent
(Rs.)

 

 

 

Amount
Spent
Direct/Agency

 

 

1 Health 

care 
Critical 

medical care 

awareness 

and its 

availability, 

conduction of 

Medical 

Camps, 

Dispensing 

medicine free 

of cost, and 

life saving 

surgery at 

free of cost
 

Saurashtra 3,24,594.63  4,00,594  4,00,594  Amount is 

donated to the 

trust engaged 

in the Health 

care activities

(a) Two percent of average net prot of the company as per section
135(5) 

3,24,594.63 

(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities 
of the previous nancial years. 

NIL 

(c) Amount required to be set off for the nancial year, if any NIL 

(d) Total CSR obligation for the nancial year (7a+7b-7c) 3,24,594.63 
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(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads : NIL

(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable : NIL

(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year : 4,00,594

(g) Excess amount for set off, if any

Sr. 

No. 

Particular Amount  

1. Two percent of average net prot of the company as per section 135(5) 3,24,594.63 

2. Total amount spent for the Financial Year 4,00,594 

3. Excess amount spent for the nancial year [(ii)-(i)] 75,999.37 

4. Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of
the previous nancial years, if any  

NIL 

5. Amount available for set off in succeeding nancial years [(iii)-(iv)] 75,999.37 

 

 

9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three nancial years: NIL

 (b) Details of CSR amount spent in the nancial year for ongoing projects of the preceding nancial 

year(s): NIL

10.  In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or 

acquired through CSR spent in the nancial year: NIL

11. In case the company has failed to spend the two per cent of the average net prot of the last three 

nancial years or any part thereof, the company shall provide the reasons for not spending the 

amount in its Board report. - Not applicable

12. CSR Committee Responsibility Statement:

The implementation and monitoring of the CSR Policy is in compliance with the CSR objectives and 

Policy of the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board of 

Tirupati Forge Limited

Sd/-

Hiteshkumar G. Thummar

Chairman CSR Committee

Place: Hadamtala (Rajkot)
th

Date: 26  August, 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Members of 

TIRUPATI FORGE LTD.

Report on the audit of Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Ind AS financial statements of TIRUPATI FORGE 

LTD. (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021, the Statement of 

Profit and Loss, including the statement of other comprehensive income, the Cash Flow Statement 

and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone financial 

statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 

information (hereinafter referred to as 'standalone financial statements').

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 

aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 

as amended ('the Act') in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the 

accounting principles generally accepted in India of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 

31, 2021, its profit including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity 

for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing 

specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are 

further described in the Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of 

our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the 

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are 

relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made 

there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 

requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is 

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Emphasis of matter

We draw attention to note 39(b) of the Standalone Ind AS financial Statement which describes the 

management's evaluation of impact of uncertainties related to COVID -19 and its consequential 

effects on the carrying value of its assets as at March 31, 2021 and the operations of the Company. 

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

"Aparna", Behind Jeevandeep Hospital, Limda Lane, Jamnagar - 361001, Gujarat, India. 
Tel. : +91 - 288 - 2665023, 2665024, 2662637, 2661612

e-mail : info@jainandmaharishi.com

 

Chartered Accountants

Maharishi & Co.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in 

our audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed 

in the context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our 

opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in 

our report. We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the 'Auditor's responsibilities for the 

audit of the standalone financial statements' section of our report, including in relation to these 

matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our 

assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements. The results 

of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide 

the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements.
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Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The 

other information comprises the information included in Chairman's Letter, Management Discussion 

and Analysis, and Directors' Report including Annexure to Directors' Report, but does not include the 

standalone financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express 

any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to 

read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially 

inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit 

or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this 

other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management and Those Charged with Governance Responsibilities for the Standalone Ind AS 

Financial Statements

The company's board of directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to preparation and presentation of these standalone 
financial statement that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance 
including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in 
accordance with the Accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian 
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of 
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets 
of the company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and 
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable 
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial control, 
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, 
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true 
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 

Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 

concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to 

liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting 

process.

Auditors' Responsibility for the audit of Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial 

statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 

issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 

assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a 

material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 

material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 

economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 

professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

· Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, 

whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, 

and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 

resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

· Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design 

audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, 

we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate 

internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

· Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

· Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of 

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 

related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to 

continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required 

to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial 

statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are 

based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future 

events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

· Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial 

statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements 

represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 

scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 

internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 

ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and 

other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, 

related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters 

that were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period 

and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law 

or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, 

we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse 

consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of 

such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditors' Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central 

Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the 

“Annexure A”, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the 

extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

b. In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so 

far as appears from our examination of those books:

c. The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other 

Comprehensive Income, Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with 

by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards 

specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 

Rules, 2015;

e. The matter described in Emphasis of matter paragraph above, in our opinion, may not have an 

adverse effect on the functioning of the Company;

f. On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2021 

taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 

2021, from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

g. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the 

company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in 

“Annexure B” to this report, 
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h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the 

requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the   Managerial 

remuneration paid/payable by the Company to its directors during the current year is in 

accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act with respect to requisite approval of 

the member.

I. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with 

Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of 

our information and according to the explanation given to us;

i. According to records of the company, information and explanation given by management 

of the company, there are no disputes or case pending against the Company.

ii. The company does not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts; hence 

the question of any material foreseeable losses does not arise;

iii. According to records of the company, information and explanation given by management 

of the company, there is no dividend outstanding to be paid, hence no amounts were 

required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the company. 

For Maharishi & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 124872W

____________________

Dushyant Maharishi

Partner

Membership No. 146144
thSigned at Jamnagar on 08  June, 2021

UDIN: 21146144AAAADV5501
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ANNEXURE A TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
[Referred to in paragraph 1 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' in the 
Independent Auditors' Report of even date to the members of TIRUPATI FORGE LTD. on the 

ststandalone Ind-AS financial statements for the year ended 31  March, 2021]

(i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative 
details and situation of fixed assets.  

(b)  All the fixed assets have not been physically verified by the management during the year but 
there is a regular programme of verification which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard 
to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. As informed, no material discrepancies 
were noticed on such verification. 

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination  
of the records of the company, the title deeds of immovable properties included in property, 
plant and equipments are in the name of the company. 
In respect of land taken on lease from managing director of the company on which factory 
building has been constructed and disclosed as right-of-use assets in the standalone financial 
statements. The title deeds of building constructed and land taken on lease arrangements are 
in the name of the company.

(ii) The inventory (excluding stocks with third parties and work in progress) has been physically 
verified by the management during the year. In respect of inventory lying with third parties, 

stthese have substantially been confirmed by them as at 31  March, 2021 and no material 
discrepancies were noticed in respect of such confirmations. In our opinion, the frequency of 
verification is reasonable. Discrepancies noticed during physical verification were not 
material and the same has been dealt with in the books of accounts. 

(iii)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not granted any 
loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms or other parties covered in the register 
maintained under section 189 of the Act, accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3 
(iii)(a) and 3(iii)(b) of the Order are not applicable and hence not commented upon.

(iv)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company 
has not granted any loans or guarantees and has not provided any security or made any 
investments as envisaged in section 185 and 186 and hence therefore the said provisions do 
not apply to the company and hence not commented upon. 

(v)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company 
has not accepted any deposits from the public within the provisions of section 73 to 76 of the 
Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended).

(vi)  To the best of our knowledge and as explained, The Central Government has prescribed the 
maintenance of cost under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act for the products of the 
company and according to which products of company falls under Non-regulated sector. We 
have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules 
made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of 
the Act, related to the manufacture of forged products and other products, and are of the 
opinion that prima facie, the specified accounts and records have been made and maintained. 
We have not, however, made a detailed examination of the same.
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(vii) (a)  The Company is generally regular in depositing with appropriate authorities amounts 
deducted/ accrued in the books of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including 
provident fund, income-tax, Goods and service tax, customs duty, cess and other material 
statutory dues applicable according to the information and explanations given to us and on 
the basis of our examination of the records of the Company.

      (b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in 
respect of provident fund, income tax, customs duty, goods and service tax, cess and other 
statutory dues applicable to the Company, were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of 
more than six months from the date they became payable.

      (c)  According to the records of the Company, information and explanation given by management 
of the company, there are no dues outstanding of income-tax, Goods and service tax, customs 
duty, and cess on account of any dispute.

(viii)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company 
has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or borrowings to banks during the year.

(ix)  The Company has not raised money by way of public issue during the year. In our opinion and 
according to the information and explanations given to us, company has raised working 
capital term loan during the year which has been applied for the purpose for which it was 
raised.

(x)  Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of 
the financial statements and according to the information and explanations given by 
Management, we report that no fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company by the 
officers and employees of the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

(xi)  According to the information and explanations given to us by the management and based on 
our examination of the records of the company, the company has paid / provided for 
managerial remuneration are in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the 
provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

(xii)  In our opinion, the Company is not a nidhi company. Accordingly, the provisions of clause (xii) 
of paragraph 4 of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable to the 
Company.

(xiii)  According to information and explanation given to us and on the basis of books of 
accounts and other relevant records of the company, all transactions with the related 
parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where 
applicable and the details have been disclosed in the standalone Financial Statements as 
required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv)  According to information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of 
books of accounts and other relevant records, the Company has made Preferential 
allotments of 11,88,000 convertible Share warrants which are converted in equal number 
of equity shares during the year under review in accordance requirement of section 42 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and the amount raised have been used for the purpose for which 
the funds were raised except the unutilized amount of Rs. 121.99 Lakhs. The details of 
utilization of proceeds from Preferential allotments have been disclosed in the Note 36 of 
the standalone Financial Statements.  
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(xv)  According to information and explanation given to us and on the basis of books of accounts of 
the company, no non-cash transaction is entered into by the company during the year.

(xvi)  According to the information and explanations given by Management, the provisions of 
section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the Company and 
hence not commented upon.

For Maharishi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 124872W

____________________
Dushyant Maharishi
Partner
Membership No. 146144

thSigned at Jamnagar on 08  June, 2021 
UDIN: 21146144AAAADV5501
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditors' report on standalone nancial statement for the year 
stended 31  March, 2021

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 ('The act') (Referred to in paragraph 2(A)(g) under 'Report on Other Legal 
and Regulatory Requirements' section of our report of even date)

We have audited the internal financial control over financial reporting of Tirupati Forge Limited ('the 
stcompany') as of 31  March, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial 

statement of the company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls over nancial reporting with 
reference to these standalone Ind AS nancials
The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 
internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India ('ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the 
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company's policies, the 
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, and accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, 
as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors' Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls over nancial reporting with reference 
to these standalone Ind AS nancials
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the company's internal financial controls over financial 
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit 
of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the 'Guidance Note') and the Standards on 
Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of 
Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan 
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial 
controls over financial reporting were established and maintained and if such controls operated 
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of 
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal 
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists and 
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the 
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 

basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial 

reporting.

109Tirupati Forge Limited  Annual Report 2020-21



"Aparna", Behind Jeevandeep Hospital, Limda Lane, Jamnagar - 361001, Gujarat, India. 
Tel. : +91 - 288 - 2665023, 2665024, 2662637, 2661612

e-mail : info@jainandmaharishi.com

 

Chartered Accountants

Maharishi & Co.

Meaning of Internal Financial Control over Financial Reporting
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Ind AS 
financial statements for external purpose in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles. 
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures 
that 
(1) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation 
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that 
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorization of 
the management and directors of the company; and 
(3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the 
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including 
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatement due 
to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal 
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal 
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, 
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
 
Opinion
In our opinion, the company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial control 
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were 

stoperating effectively as at 31  March, 2021 based on the internal financial controls with reference to 
standalone Ind AS financial statements criteria established by the company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 
over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For, Maharishi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.124872W

____________________
Dushyant Maharishi
Partner
Membership No. 146144

thSigned at Jamnagar on 08  June, 2021

UDIN: 21146144AAAADV5501
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No trade receivable are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other person.
Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally received within 90 days.
The carrying amount of trade receivables may be affected by the changes in the credit risk of the counterparties as well as the
currency risk as explained in Refer note 40.

Raw Materials [includes items lying with third parties and items in 
Stores & Consumables
Work In Progress  [includes items lying with third parties]
Finished Goods
Scrap
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in which director is a director or a member either severally or jointly with any other person.

purpose
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preceding the reporting date by capitalisation of securites premium and free reserves.

EQUITY

The company had issued and allotted to Preferential shareholders 11,88,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/-each at price of Rs. 45/- per share
aggregating to Rs. 5,34,60,000/- against convertible warrants issued as per terms and conditions approved by the members on 15th March, 2019.
Company has completed the process of issue of said shares on preferential basis along with bonus shares reserved for the issue.      

provisionspremium premium
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Tooling Income

Job work charges

Manufacturing Scrap

Export incentives

Geographical Markets

Gain on exchange fluctuations

Surplus on sale of property, plant and equipment
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Purchase of Forged Machined goods

Opening Stock

Closing Stock

progress

p

lying with third parties]

Finished goods
Scrap

progress lying with third parties]

Finished goods
Scrap

Inventories at the beginning of the year

p
p

p

p p p p q p
g

gp

g p

g
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Advertising & Sales Promotion

Consumption of Stores, Spares & tools
Freight Forwarding Charges

expenses
Charges

Machining / subcontracting charges

Legal

expenses
g expected

Repairs
Building

Travelling

charge
expense pertaining prior

Expected Tax Expense at the tax rate of 25.168% (Previous Year - 25.168%)

Disallowance of Donation expense

Rent Expense as per Ind AS 116

Ind AS adjustment on account of amortisation of term loan processing charges

Ind AS adjustment on account of amortisation of term loan processing charges

Profit on Sale of asset from block of assets as per Income Tax

Tax pertaining to prior years adjustments

Net profit after tax attributable to shareholders

Weighted Avg. No. of Shares

financial year as all warrants are converted into equity shares.

136 Tirupati Forge Limited  Annual Report 2020-21



Act,1972.

Company as lessee

Below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the movements during the period:

At April 1, 2019

Additions

Depreciations

Depreciations

At April 1, 2019

Below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movements during the period:

The following are the amounts recognised in statement of profit and loss:

Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets

Interest expense on lease liabilities

Expenses relating to Short-term leases (included in other expenses)
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expansions Plans

preventive

other receivables, loans and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations.

further provision than that already made is considered necessary.
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measured through forecast of highly probable foreign currency cash flows.

material changes to future economic conditions and its consequential impact on its financial results.

Export

Export

expenditure

Export
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Forge Limited

Manufacturers & Exporters of Forging Products


